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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark
One)

E3) ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012

or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number 0-19658

Tuesday Morning Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 75-2398532
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatio Identification No.)

6250 LBJ Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75240
(972) 387-3562
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of registrant's principal executive office

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefct:
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share, registerazh the Nasdaqg Global Select Market Inc.

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghe”ct:None



Indicate by check mark if the registrand imell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rikeof the Securities Act. YeEl No

Indicate by check mark if the registrantd@g required to file reports pursuant to Secti8rof Section 15(d) of the Act. Yelsl No
E3)

Indicate by check mark whether the regigt(a) has filed all reports required to be filed®ection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wegjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Y& No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthens submitted electronically and posted ondtparate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 Regulation S-T during the precedidgnonths (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to submit and posh files). Yesx] No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofidguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatieK & not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgelefinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment of this Form 10{K.

Indicate by check mark whether the regigtisa large accelerated filer, an accelerated, fid nonaccelerated filer, or a smaller report
company. See definitions of "large accelerated,filaccelerated filer," and "smaller reporting quemy" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filerxl Non-accelerated fileEd Smaller reporting companigd
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan’

Indicate by check mark whether the regigtima shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-thefAct). YesO No X

The aggregate market value of shares afeistrant's common stock held by non-affiliatethe registrant at December 31, 2011 was
approximately $141,935,836 based upon the closifggmice on the Nasdaq Global Select Market legorted for such date.

As of the close of business on August 22,22 there were 41,736,680 outstanding sharesaktjistrant's common stock.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemeniihin the meaning of the federal securities lawd the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which are based amagement's current expectations, estimates an@gions. These statements may
found throughout this Form -K, particularly under the headings "Business" ddMhnagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation,” among othEmyward-looking statements typically are identifieglthe use of terms such as "may,"
"will," "should," "expect," "anticipate," "believé;'estimate," "intend" and similar words, althougbme forward-looking statements are
expressed differently. You should consider stat&sitbat contain these words carefully because tlesgribe our expectations, plans,
strategies and goals and our beliefs concerningriubusiness conditions, our future results of afiens, our future financial positions, and
our business outlook or state other "forward-logKimformation.

The factors listed below under the heading "Riskt&i&s" and in other sections of this Form 10-K pdevexamples of risks,
uncertainties and events that could cause our dcasults to differ materially from the expectatsoexpressed in our forward-looking
statements. These risks, uncertainties and evésdsreclude, but are not limited to, the followingacertainties regarding our ability to open
stores in new and existing markets and operateeteEmes on a profitable basis; conditions affegtionsumer spending and the impact,
depth and duration of current economic conditiansjement weather; changes in our merchandise timing and type of sales events,
promotional activities and other advertising; inaed or new competition; loss or departure of onemore members of our seni
management, or experienced buying and managemestdrmp®l; an increase in the cost or a disruptiorthie flow of our products; seasonal
and quarterly fluctuations; fluctuations in our cparable store results; our ability to operate irghly competitive markets and to compete
effectively; our ability to operate information $g:1s and implement new technologies effectivelyability to generate strong cash flows
from our operations; our ability to anticipate anelspond in a timely manner to changing consumeratheism and preferences; and our abil
to generate strong holiday season sales.

The forward-looking statements made in this ForrKli@late only to events as of the date on whiehsttatements are made. Except as
may be required by law, we undertake no obligat®aopdate any forward-looking statements to refeaents or circumstances after the date
on which the statements were made or to reflecotiserrence of unanticipated events.

The terms "Tuesday Morning," "the Company," "w&$," and "our" as used in this Form 10-K refer tee§day Morning Corporation
and its subsidiaries.
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PART I
Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a leading closeout retailer of ufesdacorative home accessories, housewares, ammifamaker gifts in the United States. We
opened our first store in 1974 and operated 852st0 43 states as of June 30, 2012. Our stoeegearerally open seven days a week and
focus on periodic "sales events," that occur irhgaonth except January and July, which historicladlye been weaker months for retailers.
Our stores are normally closed for up to five ddysng the months of January and July as we corglugtical inventories at all of our stores.
We purchase first quality, brand name merchandiseoaeout pricing and, in turn, sell it at pricggnificantly below those generally charged
by department stores and specialty and catalodamstaWWe do not sell seconds, irregulars, refumbisor factory rejects.

We believe that our well recognized, faaality brand name merchandise and value-basem@ti@ve enabled us to establish and
maintain strong customer loyalty. Our customersy ate predominantly women from middle to upper-imechouseholds, are brand savvy,
value-conscious customers seeking quality prodatatisscount pricing. While we offer our customessisistent merchandise categories, each
sales event features limited quantities of newakaling products within these categories, crgatiftreasure hunt" atmosphere in our
stores.

We believe that our customers are attraitexlir stores not by location, but by our advargjsand direct or electronic mail programs t
emphasize the limited quantities of first qualtlyand name merchandise which we offer at attragiees. This has allowed us to open our
stores in secondary locations of major suburbarketsrsuch as strip malls, near our middle and p®me customers. We are generally
able to obtain favorable lease terms because dledbility in site selection and our no-frills fmat, which allow us to use a wide variety of
space configurations. Additionally, we offer setatttems for sale at our retail websitevatw.tuesdaymorning.com

Key Operating Strengths
Our success is based on the following dpeyatrengths:

. Unique Event-Based Format. We distinguish ourselves from other retaileithwa unique "event-based" selling strategy,
creating the excitement of multiple "grand openireysd "closeout sales" each year. Merchandiseagadle in limited
guantities and specific items are generally notler@phed during a sales event, however, storesmeanto receive new
merchandise throughout a sales event. We beliatdghh limited quantities of specific items intdpgiustomers' sense of
urgency to buy our merchandise. Accordingly, weehaistorically generated a majority of an everdlesin the week of the
event. We intend to continue to adhere to thidesgsga and continue shipments to our stores of navdifferent merchandise
during the later stages of sales events in ordentourage new and repeat customer visits.

. Strong Sourcing Capabilities and Purchasing Flexibity.  We have developed strong sourcing capabilitiesallow us to
gain favorable access to first quality, brand nameechandise at attractive prices. In many casedelieve we are the retailer
of choice to liquidate inventory due to our abilitymake purchasing decisions quickly without dising the manufacturers'
traditional distribution channels or compromisihgit brand image. Our flexible purchasing strateljgws us to pursue new
products and merchandise categories from vendaspasrtunities arise. We employ an experiencedrguigam with an
average of over 26 years of retail experience pgeb Our buyers and our reputation as a preferedidble closeout retailer
have enabled us to establish long-term relatiosshith a diverse group of
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top-of-the-line vendors. We believe we will continio obtain sufficient merchandise to accommodateegisting store base
and planned future growth.

. Loyal Customer Base of Brand Savvy and Val.-Conscious Consumers  We have a loyal customer base consisting
primarily of women ranging in age from 35 to 65rfraniddle and upper-income households with a meaiaual family
income of approximately $70,000. In addition to imakpurchase decisions based on brand names addgprquality, our
customers are also value-conscious. We believealue-based pricing, which enables our customersatize significant
savings of up to 50% to 80% over competing depantrare retail prices, has resulted in both straugfomer loyalty and
satisfaction. We have developed and currently raaird proprietary mailing and email list consistofgver 9.0 million
customers. These customers have visited our shmickfor our e-commerce site and requested posiébraelectronic mailings
to alert them of upcoming sales events, includirgglirand name merchandise and prices to be offered to the advertising
of a sales event to the general public.

. Attractive Store-level Economics. We have attractive store-level economics dusutdow store operating expenses and the
low initial investment required to open new stof@ar destination-oriented retail format allows a®pen stores in a wide
range of locations, generally resulting in loweade rates compared to those of other retailerddition to our low real estate
costs, we maintain low operating and depreciatmstscdue to our no-frills, self-service format. Bese we use low-cost store
fixtures and have low pre-opening costs, our n@sestrequire a low initial investment and havedristlly generated a solid
return on investment in their first full year.

. Disciplined Inventory and Supply Chain Management We have developed disciplined inventory conairdl supply chain
management procedures. Our purchasing flexibihiy strong relationships with vendors allow us tordinate the timing of
purchases and receipt of merchandise closely wittsales events. Our merchandise and distribujistems allow us to
quickly and efficiently process and ship merchaadiiom our distribution center to our stores. Ooinp-of-sale systems allow
us to effectively manage our inventory levels aaleés performance. Although we operated 852 stdrésre 30, 2012, our
shipping and sorting capacity at our distributiemter will accommodate approximately 1,200 to 1,2%0es.

Growth Strategy

Our growth strategy is to continue to buildour position as a leading closeout retailargsfcale home furnishings, housewares, gifts
and related items in the United States by:

. Enhancing Our Store Base In fiscal year 2013 we plan to focus our efarh attractive relocation opportunities in our
existing store base. See Item 6—Selected Finabeitd in this Form 10-K for information regardingr dnistorical store
openings and closings. We plan to continue cloaimderperforming stores by allowing leases to expinere alternative
locations in similar trade areas are not availablecceptable lease rates. For both new storesbowhtions, we will continue
to negotiate for upgraded sites. We will also eziexpansion opportunities in select high-prodysiiores to increase the
selling square footage, particularly in smalleraso We believe these strategies will better pwsitis for the long term while
still maintaining a low cost per square foot intrerpense. To that end, for the fiscal year endinge 30, 2013 we plan to keep
our overall store count constant, but focus ousrédfon the relocation of our existing store lomasi as profitable opportunities
present themselves. We do not anticipate any diffes in identifying suitable additional store &ions in areas with our targ
customer demographics.
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. Enhancing Our Sales Productivity. We intend to continue to increase the numbeusfomer transactions by refining our
merchandise mix and through other operating iVt In addition, we have been selective in oaseeal merchandise
purchases and remain focused on high quality, e items. We are able to increase our mercharmdierings throughout
each sales event and on a day-in, day-out bagiglbyering new merchandise to the majority of diores 44 to 50 times per
year on average. We believe this attracts new mest®, encourages repeat visits by existing cust®anad increases our
average transaction value during the later stafjeaah sales event. We have increased staffingna¢ ©f our high volume
stores in an effort to improve our customer serieéeels and drive our sales volumes while decrepsiaffing at stores where
customer traffic does not require increased stgfi@vels.

. Extending Our Customer Reach. Historically, we have used direct mailingsgted emails, and newspaper and print
advertising to attract customers to our storesb@leeve that the use of direct mailing and emaittalremains our most
effective marketing strategies. We also utilize eumail program to provide our customers with améwf our newest weekly
arrivals, special offers and our monthly mailetjrathe convenience of their homes or offices. &ve continuing to expand c
use of online social networking and have gainedeiased sales momentum through our improved e-cooensée. We piloted
a customer loyalty program in the Dallas-Ft. Warthrket during the last quarter of fiscal 2012 alash o rollout nationally in
fiscal 2013.

. Improving Systems. We continue to enhance our merchandising systerd have implemented an improved allocation
system. We are in the process of upgrading ourt pbisale systems and have migrated to a more t@osmmerce platform.
We will continue to upgrade and improve our systasisequired in the ongoing course of business.

Industry Trends

As a closeout retailer of first qualityabd name merchandise, we benefit from attractieeactteristics in the closeout industry. Close
merchandise is generally available to closeoutleztaat low prices for a variety of reasons, imthg the inability of a manufacturer to sell
merchandise through regular channels, the disagemice of merchandise due to a style or color chahgecancellation of orders placed by
other retailers and the termination of businesa byanufacturer or wholesaler. Occasionally, theazbot retailer may be able to purchase
closeout merchandise because a manufacturer hassesaw materials or production capacity. Typicallgseout retailers have lower
merchandise costs, capital expenditures and opgratists, which allows for the sale of merchandigarices lower than other retailers.

In addition, we benefit from several tremusghe retailing industry. "Just-in-time" invenyjomanagement and retailer consolidation have
both resulted in a shift of inventory risk fromai¢rs to manufacturers. In response to an inanghstompetitive market, manufacturers
continue to introduce new products and new packggiare frequently. We believe that these trende ealped make the closeout retailer an
integral part of manufacturers' overall distributigtrategies. As a result, we believe manufactuaersncreasingly looking for larger, more
sophisticated closeout retailers, such as oursgllvascan purchase larger and more varied merémadd can control the distribution and
advertising of specific products in order to mirgeidisruption to the manufacturers' traditionatriistion channels.

Products

We sell first quality, upscale home furnigls, housewares, gifts and related items. We dselbseconds, irregulars, refurbished or
factory rejects. Our merchandise primarily considtamps, rugs, furniture, kitchen accessorieslbeilectronics, gourmet housewares,
linens, luggage, bedroom and




Table of Contents

bathroom accessories, toys, pet products, statiarat silk plants as well as crystal, collectibkbkjer serving pieces, men, women and
children's apparel and accessories. We specializgell-recognized, first quality, brand name meratiae, which has included, Viking and
Calphalon cookware, Breville, KitchenAid and Cuainappliances, Peacock Alley and Sferra linenghigel Kors bath towels, Travel Pro
luggage, Reed and Barton flatware, Lenox and Déalbletop, Waterford and Riedel crystal, Steinbauth lHummel collectibles, Madame
Alexander dolls, Royal Doulton and Wedgwood chind giftware, Couristan rugs and many others.

We differ from discount retailers in thag¢ wo not stock continuing lines of merchandise.a@Bse we offer a continuity of merchandise
categories with ever-changing individual produdenhgs, we provide our customers a higher proportif new merchandise items than
general merchandisers. We are continually lookingdd new complementary merchandise categoriesjipegal to our customers.

Purchasing

We provide an outlet for manufactures atieiosources looking for effective ways to reduceess inventory resulting from order
cancellations by retailers, manufacturing overramnd excess capacity. Since our inception, we havexperienced any significant difficulty
in obtaining first quality, brand name closeout chamndise in adequate volumes and at attractivegrit/e use a mix of domestic and
international vendors. We make opportunistic pusesaat substantial discounts. We buy merchandisetdiom manufacturers as well as
utilizing other sources such as liquidators andkbhagptcies. We pay our vendors timely and generdtiynot request special consideration for
markdowns, advertising or returns. Our distribujimacesses allow us to stock merchandise in ovestmore quickly, which increases our
purchasing flexibility. We are positioned and aldid¢ake advantage of more, and often larger, bugppprtunities as well as offer an
enhanced selection of products to our customergnBtiscal 2012, our top ten vendors accountedifiproximately 10.9% of total
purchases, with no single vendor accounting forarban 1.6% of total purchases.

Pricing

Our pricing policy is to sell all merchasdisignificantly below the retail prices generalyarged by department and specialty stores.
Prices are determined centrally and are uniforallatf our stores. Once a price is determined fpadicular item, labels displaying three-
tiered pricing are affixed to the product. A tygipaice tag displays a competitor's "regular” prige&ompetitor's "sale" price and our closeout
price. Our management and buyers verify retailgwisy reviewing prices published in advertisemantscatalogues and manufacturers'
suggested retail price lists and by visiting deparit or specialty stores selling similar merchamd®ur information systems provide daily
sales and inventory information, which enablesoumark down unsold merchandise on a timely andgaribasis as dictated by sales
volumes and incoming purchases, thereby effectiwedynaging our inventory levels.

Advertising

We plan and implement an advertising progfer each sales event. Prior to each sales ewenitiate a direct mailing or email to
customers on our mailing list, which consists agtomers who have previously visited our storesragdested mailings or signed up through
our e-commerce site. These direct mailings alestaruers to the opening of a sales event and thehmedise and prices we offer. We also
communicate with customers by advertising from ttméme in local newspapers in each of our markégag with information available on
our e-commerce sales websitevatw.tuesdaymorning.com
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Stores and Store Operations

StoreLocations.  As of June 30, 2012, we operated 852 stordseiffiollowing 43 states:

State # of Stores State # of Stores
Alabama 22 Montana 1
Arizona 21 Nebraske 4
Arkansas 14 Nevadas 8
California 90 New Hampshire 1
Colorada 23 New Jerse! 9
Delaware 2 New Mexico 7
Florida 65 New York 18
Georgia 38 North Caroline 35
Idaho 5 North Dakote 1
Illinois 29 Ohio 27
Indiana 14 Oklahoma 12
lowa 5 Oregon 12
Kansas 11 Pennsylvani: 23
Kentucky 13 South Carolin: 26
Louisiana 20 South Dakotz 1
Maine 1 Tennesse 21
Maryland 22 Texas 111
Massachusett 4 Utah 8
Michigan 12 Virginia 39
Minnesota 11 Washingtor 18
Mississippi 16 Wisconsin 11
Missouri 21

Site Selection.  We continually evaluate our current store bragarding potential enhancement or relocation ofstare locations. As
result of this ongoing evaluation, we have andndt® continue to pursue attractive relocation apputies in our existing store base, close
certain stores by allowing leases to expire forampdrforming stores or where alternative locationsimilar trade areas are not available at
acceptable lease rates, and open new stores. ffonde stores and relocations, we negotiate forageyl sites. We believe that this strategy
will better position us for the lontgrm while still maintaining a low cost per squéwet in rent expense. To that end, for the fiseaaryending
June 30, 2013 we plan to keep our overall storatcoenstant, but focus our efforts on the relocatibour existing store locations as
profitable opportunities present themselves. Wesekpur new stores to be similar in appearanceogedation to our existing stores and do
not anticipate difficulty in identifying suitablalditional store locations in areas with our targettomer demographics. As we continue our
relocation strategy, we expect to incur minimalra&in the cost of real estate for those locations.

We believe that our customers are attraitexir stores by our advertising, direct mail @anghil programs that emphasize the limited
guantities of first quality, brand name merchandsg we offer at attractive prices, rather tharddmation. This has allowed us to open our
stores in secondary locations of major suburbarketsrsuch as strip malls, near our middle and wp®me customers. We are able to
obtain favorable lease terms because of our flityilim site selection and our no-frills format, igh allow us to effectively use a wide variety
of space configurations. As a result of this oppoigtic approach to site selection, we believereat estate costs are lower than many
traditional retailers.
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StoreLeases. Except for one store adjacent to our distritrutienter, we lease our store locations undercameelable operating lea:
that include optional renewal periods. Some ofleases also provide for contingent rent based spame sales exceeding stipulated amounts.

Our store leases typically include "kicktes," which allow us, at our option, to exit fdese 24 to 36 months after entering into the
lease if sales at the store do not reach a stgaitount stated in the lease. These kick claudes) combined with our inexpensive and
portable store fixtures, provide us with flexibyjlin opening new stores and relocating existingestdoy allowing us to quickly and cost-
effectively vacate a site that does not meet ol@ssaxpectations. As a result, we generally doopetate locations with continued store-level
operating losses where our leases provide usléxibility.

StoreLayout.  Our opportunistic site selection and "no-ftilgpproach to presenting merchandise allow us écauside variety of
space configurations. The size of our stores gépeeanges from 5,000 to 31,800 square feet andamees approximately 10,200 square feet
as of June 30, 2012. We have designed our stotes fianctional, with less emphasis placed upomfed and leasehold aesthetics. We dis
all merchandise at each store by type and sizadsror counters, and we maintain minimum inveniorstockrooms.

Store Operations.  Our stores are generally open seven days a,w&ekiding certain holidays. Our stores, or aiparthereof, are
closed for up to five days during the months ofuzam and July as we conduct physical inventoriesdlatore locations. We continue to
maintain the frequency of shipments of merchandising sales events that occur once each monttpegdaauary and July, which results in
improved efficiency of receiving and restockingidties at our stores. We attempt to align our {iane associates' labor hours in the stores
closely with current customer demand.

Store Management.  Each store has a manager who is responsibledaniting, training and supervising store persdramd assuring
that the store is managed in accordance with dabkshed guidelines and procedures. Store manageifsill-time employees. Our store
managers are supported by regional field manageamehtzone level support. Store managers are refoifier reviewing store inventory a
ensuring their store is continually stocked foesavent and non-sales event periods. The storageais assisted primarily by part-time
employees, with few exceptions, who generally sassassistant managers, cashiers, and help wittharadise stocking efforts. We believe
that ongoing training is a critical component to the swsscef our store management. Each store managévesdtmining beginning with ne
manager training upon being hired or promoted, eléas periodic attendance at one or more traisggsions held in Dallas, Texas.

Members of our management visit selecterestduring sales event and non-sales event panadsiew inventory levels and
presentation, personnel performance, expense ¢ongeurity and adherence to our policies andguhoes. In addition, regional and zone
field managers periodically meet with senior mamagyet to review store policies and to discuss pigiclia merchandising and advertising
strategies.

Distribution

An important aspect of our model involvies ability to process, sort and distribute invepfficiently. Our distribution center, buying,
and planning and allocation departments work closmjether to ensure that inventory flow is effitiand effective. The majority of
merchandise is received, inspected, counted, tdkahd designated for individual stores at ourreédistribution center in the Dallas, Texas
metropolitan area. As a general rule, we carrylainproducts in each of our stores, but the amotiimtventory each store is allocated varies
depending upon size, location and sales projecfmmthat store. Consistent with our sales evaatetly, we ship most merchandise to our
stores within a few weeks of its arrival at ourtdisition center. We generally do not replenish
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specific merchandise during a sales event; thougimay ship new and different merchandise to sthresighout a sales event.

We make inventory deliveries to the majoat our stores 44 to 50 times per year on avenrabeh allows us to significantly reduce the
amount of inventory stored at our distribution egregnd maintain consistent in-store inventory Isv&his number of shipments also allows
our stores to process shipments effectively ang kieeir shelves stocked with new merchandise dws@lgs events and non-sales event
periods. We use a bar-code locator system to tragntory from the time it is received until itshipped to our stores. This system allows us
to locate, price, sort and ship merchandise effityefrom our central distribution center.

Online customer orders are shipped eittoen four e-commerce fulfillment facility, which isdated near our other distribution facilities
in Dallas, Texas, or directly to the customer froon supplier. We use a bar-code locator systemattk inventory from the time it is received
until it is shipped to our customers. This systéimnes us to locate, price, sort and ship merchandficiently from our e-commerce
fulfillment center.

Management Information Systems

We have invested significant resourceomguters, bar code scanners and radio frequenoynials, software programming and related
equipment, technology and training, and we intendontinue updating these systems as necessargls¢/@ave a company-wide local area
network computer system, which includes purchadergsrocessing, imports, transportation, distritiutpoint-of-sale and financial systems
that enables us to efficiently control and proaassinventory.

At the store level, we have computer-basgibters that capture daily sales data at thécsteeping unit, or "SKU" level. Sales and
inventory information, open to buy and other operstl data is distributed daily to designated ls\adlmanagement and to the individuals or
groups who have responsibility for specific aspeéthe business.

Competition

We believe the principal factors by which eompete are price and product offering. We beligg compete effectively by pricing the
merchandise we sell below department and speatite prices and by offering a broad assortmehigif-end, first quality, brand name
merchandise. We currently compete against a divgmap of retailers, including department and distatores, specialty, e-commerce and
catalog retailers and mass merchants, which sebng other products, home furnishings, housewarédselated products. We also compete
in particular markets with a substantial numberetdilers that specialize in one or more typesamhé furnishing products that we sell. Some
of these competitors have substantially greatenfifal resources that may, among other thingsease their ability to purchase inventory at
lower costs or to initiate and sustain aggressieegompetition.

We are distinguishable from our competifarseveral respects. Unlike our competitors, whgdmarily offer continuing lines of
merchandise, we offer changing lines of merchandiégending on availability at value driven pride®st retailers in the closeout retailing
industry are either general merchandisers or foouapparel, while our current operations focus prity on upscale home furnishings,
housewares, gifts and related items. In additianpelieve most closeout retailers focus on loweraiddle-income consumers, while we
generally cater to middle and upper-income custenténally, our business model continues to begedwn ten major sales events, which
are promoted and advertised to our customers thrdirgct mailings, emails and, from time to timaglio and television advertising. We
believe that our sales events create a sense efey@nd excitement on the part of our customesause they know that the availability of
merchandise during a sales event is limited.
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Seasonality

Our business is subject to seasonalityh wihigher level of our net sales and operatingrime generated during the quarter ended
December 31, which includes the holiday shoppiragse. Net sales in the quarters ended Decemb@021, 2010, and 2009 accounted for
approximately 34%, 34%, and 35%, respectively,wsfannual net sales for such fiscal years. Opeyaticome for the quarters ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, accounted foogimately 343%, 157%, and 150%, respectivelyguofannual operating income for
such fiscal years.

Employees

As of June 30, 2012, we employed approxa@fgat,900 persons on a full-time basis and appraiefy 6,500 on a part-time basis. Our
employees are not represented by any labor unidrshave not experienced any work stoppage dudty Bisagreements, and we believe
that our employee relations are strong.

Trademarks and Tradenames

The tradename "Tuesday Morning" is matedadur business. We have registered the name tiayddorning” as a service mark with
the United States Patent and Trademark office. ¥ falso registered other trademarks includingsi@p Time®" and "eTreasures®" and
maintain an e-commerce sales websitewatv.tuesdaymorning.com

Corporate Information

Tuesday Morning Corporation is a Delawargoration incorporated in 1991. Our principal axe® offices are located at 6250 LBJ
Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75240, and our telephonéauim (972) 387-3562.

We maintain a websitewtvw.tuesdaymorning.conCopies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, QuértBeports on Form 10-Q,
Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendmentsdb eports filed with, or furnished to, the Setiesiand Exchange Commission (the
"SEC") are available free of charge on our intemelbsite under the Investor Relations section.

The reports we file or furnish to the SEGynbe read and copied at the SEC's Public RefelRaom at 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the [IRuReference Room may be obtained by calling tB€ &t 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition,
the SEC maintains a websiteww.sec.goywhich contains the reports, proxy and informastatements and other information which we file
with, or furnish to, the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business is subject to significantsiskhe risks and uncertainties described belowtla@mather information in this Form 10-K,
including our consolidated financial statements gmednotes to those statements, should be careffigidered. The risks and uncertainties
described below may not be the only ones facind\dditional risks and uncertainties that we do pratsently know about or that we curre
believe are immaterial may also affect our busimggsations. If any of the events described belotwadly occur, our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be advgrafected in a material way.

Risks Related to Our Business
Current economic conditions may affect consumer spending and could significantly harm our business.

The success of our business depends tmidisant extent upon the level of consumer spegudfnumber of factors beyond our control
affect the level of consumer spending on merchantthat we offer, including, among other things:er@aheconomic and industry conditions;
unemployment; the housing market; deterioratiooansumer confidence; crude oil prices that affasiogine and diesel fuel, as well as,
increases in other fuels used to support utilifiesd prices and their effect on consumer discnetip spending; efforts by our customers to
reduce personnel debt levels; interest rates;Uhtimns in the financial markets; tax rates andcpes; war, terrorism and other hostilities; and
consumer confidence in future economic conditions.

The merchandise we sell generally consitiscretionary items. Reduced consumer confidemcespending cut backs may result in
reduced demand for our merchandise, including eliggrary items, and may force us to take signifigaventory markdowns. Reduced
demand also may require increased selling and pionad expenses. Adverse economic conditions agdelated decrease in consumer
demand for our merchandise could have a matenadrad effect on our business, results of operatosfinancial condition.

We face a number of risksin opening new stores and relocating or expanding existing stores.

As part of our growth strategy, we inteagtirsue relocation opportunities to improve oustixg store base as well as open new stores
that will offset the closing of lower performingpsés as they come up for renewal. For both nevestand relocations, we negotiate for
upgraded sites. For the fiscal year ending Jun@@D3 we plan to increase the chain-wide squaredmoby approximately 1% - 2% if we
locate attractive opportunities to do so. Howewar,cannot assure that we will be able to achieveaacation goals or that we will be able
operate any new or relocated stores profitablythHeny we cannot assure that any new or relocated still achieve similar operating results
to those of our existing stores or that new, rdkd@r expanded stores opened in markets in whecbperate will not have a material adve
effect on the revenues and profitability of ourstixig store base. The success of our planned expangl be dependent upon numerous
factors, many of which are beyond our control, uddhg the following: the ability of our personneladequately analyze and identify suitable
markets and individual store sites within thosekats; the competition for suitable store sites; ahility to negotiate favorable lease terms
with landlords; our ability to obtain governmengald other third-party consents, permits and licemsaded to operate our stores; the
availability of employees to staff new stores and ability to hire, train, motivate and retain stqrersonnel; the availability of adequate
management and financial resources to properly geaadarge volume of stores; our ability to adaptdistribution and other operational ¢
management systems to a changing network of stanelspur ability to attract customers and genesales sufficient to operate new,
relocated or expanded stores profitably.

We opened stores in new markets durindisical years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 20&0ingend to enter into additional new
markets in fiscal 2013 and beyond. These markejshraae
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different competitive conditions, consumer trendd discretionary spending patterns than our exjstiarkets, which may cause our new
stores in these markets to be less successfubthass in our existing markets.

Our businessisintensely competitive and stronger competition could have a material adverse effect on us.

The retail home furnishings and housewargsstry is intensely competitive. As a closeouiiter of home furnishings and housewares,
we currently compete against a diverse group ailezs, including department and discount stonesciglty and e-commerce retailers and
mass merchants, which sell, among other produotaghurnishing and houseware products similar dtehadentical to those we sell. We
also compete in particular markets with a subsahntimber of retailers that specialize in one orertgpes of home furnishing and housew
products that we sell. Many of these competitoretamibstantially greater financial resources thay allow them to initiate and sustain
aggressive price competition. A number of differeminpetitive factors could have a material adveffect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition, including: ieased operational efficiencies of competitors; ogtitige pricing strategies, including deep
discount pricing by a broad range of retailers miyiperiods of poor consumer confidence or econaméertainty; continued and prolonged
promotional activity by competitors; liquidationlsa by a number of our competitors who have fileditl file for bankruptcy; expansion by
existing competitors; entry by new competitors imtarkets in which we currently operate; and adoptip existing competitors of innovative
store formats or retail sales methods.

We cannot assure that we will be able tttiooe to compete successfully with our existinghew competitors, or that prolonged periods
of deep discount pricing by our competitors wilt nmaterially harm our business. We compete forarusts, associates, locations,
merchandise, services and other important aspéots dusiness with many other local, regionaljoral and international retailers. We also
face competition from alternative retail distritartichannels such as catalogues and, increasingymenerce websites. Changes in the
merchandising, pricing and promotional activitiéshmse competitors, and in the retail industryg@éneral, may adversely affect our
performance.

Our operating results depend on our website, network infrastructure and transaction-processing systems. Capacity constraints or system
failureswould harm our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Any system interruptions that result in teduced performance of our transaction systerahjding our point of sale systems,
merchandising systems, or website, could reducéransaction volume and the attractiveness of ¢heices that we provide to customers
could harm our business, prospects, operatingtseantl financial condition.

We use internally developed systems forveeinsite and certain aspects of transaction prowgsacluding personalization databases
utilized for internal analytics, recommendationsd ander verifications. We have experienced periggistems interruptions due to server
failure and power failure, which we believe willntmue to occur from time to time. If the volumetddffic on our website or the number of
purchases made by customers increases substgntiallyill need to further expand and upgrade ocinrtelogy, transaction processing
systems and network infrastructure. We have expeeig and expect to continue to experience tempagggcity constraints due to sharply
increased traffic during sales or other promotiand during the holiday shopping season. Capacitgtcaints can cause unanticipated system
disruptions, slower response times, delayed paggeptation, degradation in levels of customer seniimpaired quality and delays in
reporting accurate financial information.

Our transaction processing systems andarktimfrastructure may be unable to accommodateeases in traffic in the future. We may
be unable to project accurately the rate or tinthtaffic
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increases or successfully upgrade our systemsnfirasstructure to accommodate future traffic levaisour website. In addition, we may be
unable to upgrade and expand our transaction pimgesystems in an effective and timely mannepontegrate any newly developed or
purchased functionality within our existing systeriny such difficulties with our transaction prose®y systems or other difficulties
upgrading, expanding or integrating various aspefctair systems may cause unanticipated systemplisns, slower response times, and
degradation in levels of customer service, additi@xpense, impaired quality and speed of ordéitlfuént or delays in reporting accurate
financial information.

Failure to adequately maintain security and prevent unauthorized access to electronic and other confidential information could adversely
affect our financial condition and operating results

We are heavily dependent upon automatdtht#ogy processes. Third parties that can penedtateetwork security or otherwise
misappropriate our customers' personal informatiocredit card information could subject us to agrinegative repercussions. These
repercussions could negatively impact our competitidvantage, our customers' confidence levelsahfkct us to potential litigation and
fines/penalties. While we remain in compliance wtyment Card Industry requirements, we cannotras&wu that our security measures
will prevent security breaches or that failure teyent such security breaches will not harm ouirtass, prospects, financial condition and
results of operations.

Compromises of our data security could materially harm our reputation and business.

In the ordinary course of our businesscaléect and store certain personal information fiiadividuals, such as our customers and
associates, and we process customer payment chchaok information. We may suffer unauthorizedusions into portions of our compu
system that process and store information relatedistomer transactions. We have taken steps agbtgrstrengthen the security of our
computer system and protocols and have institutezhgoing program with respect to data securityextheless, there can be no assurance
that we will not suffer a data compromise. We mtlycommercially available systems, software, taold monitoring to provide security for
processing, transmission and storage of confidenf@mation. Further, the systems currently ukadransmission and approval of payment
card transactions, and the technology utilizedaynpent cards themselves, all of which can put paymard data at risk, are determined and
controlled by the payment card industry, not byTlss is also true for check information and apalo€omputer hackers may attempt to
penetrate our computer system and, if successfsppropriate personal information, payment cardhack information or confidential
Company business information. In addition, a Comypassociate, contractor or other third party withom we do business may attempt to
circumvent our security measures in order to obdarh information and inadvertently cause a bréaotiving such information. Advances
computer and software capabilities and encryp&ahtology, new tools and other developments magase the risk of such a breach. Any
such compromise of our data security and loss ifqmal or business information could disrupt ougragions, damage our reputation and
customers' willingness to shop in our stores, woépplicable laws, regulations, orders and agrae&snand subject us to additional costs and
liabilities which could be material.

We must continuously attract buying opportunities for closeout merchandise and anticipate consumer demand as closeout merchandise
becomes available.

By its nature, specific closeout merchamdliems are available from manufacturers or vendererally on a non-recurring basis. As a
result, we do not have long-term contracts with\amdors for supply, pricing or access to produmis,make individual purchase decisions,
which are often for large quantities. Due to ecoitoumcertainties, some of our manufacturers angl&ns may cease operations or may
otherwise become unable to continue supplying dasmerchandise on terms
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acceptable to us. We further cannot assure thatifaeturers or vendors will continue to make clogaoarchandise available to us in
guantities acceptable to us or that our buyersaaititinue to identify and take advantage of appad@buying opportunities. In addition, if \
misjudge consumer demand for products, we mayfgignily overstock unpopular products and be formetake significant markdowns and
miss opportunities to sell more popular products.irability to acquire suitable merchandise infiteire or to accurately anticipate consul
demand for such merchandise would have an advBes# en our business, results of operations amahitial condition.

Theloss of, or disruption in the operations of, our centralized distribution center would have a material adverse effect on our business and
operations.

With few exceptions, all inventory is shiabdirectly from suppliers to our centralized dmsition center in the Dallas, Texas
metropolitan area, where the inventory is then @ssed, sorted and shipped to our stores or shigipeztly to our customers who purchase
merchandise from our e-commerce website. We dejpeladge part on the orderly operation of this reicgy and distribution process, which
depends, in turn, on adherence to shipping schedmlé effective management of the distribution@em/e cannot assure that we have
anticipated all of the changing demands which opaading operations will impose on our receiving distribution system or that events
beyond our control, such as disruptions in openatdue to fire or other catastrophic events, laisagreements or shipping problems, will
not result in delays in the delivery of merchand@seur stores. We also cannot assure that ouranse will be sufficient, or that insurance
proceeds will be timely paid to us, in the eventdistribution center is shut down for any reason.

Our freight costs and thus our cost of goods sold are impacted by changesin fuel prices.

Our freight cost is impacted by changefu@l prices through surcharges. Fuel prices anchsuges affect freight cost both on inbound
freight from vendors to our distribution center andbound freight from our distribution center tar gtores. In addition, the U.S. government
requires drivers of over-the-road trucks to takeaie rest periods which reduce the available arhofitime they can drive during a 24-hour
period. High fuel prices or surcharges, as welitdagent driver regulations, may increase freiggts and thereby increase our cost of goods
sold.

Theloss or departure of one or more members of our senior management or other key employees could have a material adverse effect on
our business.

Our future performance will depend in lapget upon the efforts and abilities of our sem@nagement and our other key employees,
including our buyers. The loss of service of thesesons could have a material adverse effect obwsiness and future prospects. We do not
maintain key person life insurance for our senianagement. We only have an employment agreememtMvitMichael Marchetti, our
Interim Chief Executive Officer, President and Glidperating Officer, and have no such agreemertts aviy other members of senior
management or our buyers.

If we are not able to generate strong cash flows from our operations, we will not be able to support capital expansion, operations and debt
repayment.

Our business is dependent upon our opesitienerating strong cash flows to support capikphnsion requirements and general
operating activities. Our inability to continuedenerate sufficient cash flows to support theswities or the lack of availability of financing
in adequate amounts and on appropriate terms eaersely affect our financial performance.
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An increasein the cost or a disruption in the flow of our imported products may significantly decrease our sales and profits.

Merchandise manufactured and imported fowerseas represents the majority of our total prbgurchases acquired both domestically
and internationally. A disruption in the shippingimported merchandise or an increase in the dos$tose products may significantly
decrease our sales and profits. In addition, ifartgd merchandise becomes more expensive or uablgithe transition to alternative
sources may not occur in time to meet our demapiglucts from alternative sources may also bessilequality and more expensive than
those we currently import. Risks associated withreliance on imported products include disruptionthe shipping and importation or
increases in the costs of imported products becafulsetors such as: raw material shortages; wiwgages; strikes and political unrest;
problems with oceanic shipping, including shippaamtainer shortages; increased customs inspeatfangort shipments or other factors
causing delays in shipments; economic crises;natenal disputes and wars; loss of "most favorsibn" trading status by the United States
in relation to a particular foreign country; impdrities; import quotas and other trade sanctioms;igcreases in shipping rates.

The products we buy abroad are sometiniesgin foreign currencies and, therefore, we #iected by fluctuating exchange rates. In
the past, we have entered into foreign currencha&xge contracts with major financial institutionshedge these fluctuations. We might not
be able to successfully protect ourselves in theréuagainst currency rate fluctuations, and auarfcial performance could suffer as a result.
You should read "Management's Discussion and Aisabfs-inancial Condition and Results of Operatiant "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk" for more informatiabout our foreign currency exchange rate exposutiehedging activities.

Our success depends upon our marketing, advertising and promotional efforts. If we are unable to implement them successfully, or if our
competitors are more effective than we are, our revenue may be adversely affected.

We use marketing and promotional prograorattract customers to our stores and to encoyragshases by our customers. We use
various media for our promotional efforts, inclugliprint, television, database marketing, emaikdimarketing, and other electronic
communications such as online social networks dffail to choose the appropriate medium for ouoré$f or fail to implement and execute
new marketing opportunities, our competitors mayblke to attract some of our customers and caese th decrease purchases from us and
increase purchases elsewhere, which would neggfivgact our revenues. Changes in the amount agid®f promotional intensity or
merchandising strategy by our competitors couldseats to have difficulties in retaining existingstamers and attracting new customers.

If we do not attract and retain quality sales, distribution center and other associatesin large numbers, aswell as, experienced buying and
management personnel, our performance could be adversely affected.

Our performance is dependent on recruitigyeloping, training and retaining quality saldistribution center and other associates in
large numbers, as well as, experienced buying aanthgement personnel. Many of our associates anetin level or part-time positions with
historically high rates of turnover. Our ability neeet our labor needs while controlling costs Igjett to external factors, such as
unemployment levels, prevailing wage rates, mininwage legislation and changing demographics. Iretlent of increasing wage rates, if
we do not increase our wages competitively, outoznsr service could suffer because of a declinumlity of our workforce, or our earnings
would decrease if we increase our wage rates. @sathgit adversely impact our ability to attract egtdin quality associates and managel
personnel could adversely affect our performance.
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Our results of operations are subject to seasonal and quarterly fluctuations, which could have a material adverse effect on our operating
results or the market price of our common stock.

Our business is subject to seasonality wiltligher level of net sales and operating incoereated during the quarter ended
December 31, which includes the holiday shoppirsgse. Net sales in the quarters ended Decemb@031, 2010, and 2009, accounted for
approximately 34%, 34%, and 35%, respectively,wfannual net sales for such years. Operating iecomthe quarters ended December
2011, 2010, and 2009 accounted for approximateBp@4157%, and 150%, respectively, of our annuatatpey income for such years. For
more information about our seasonality, please t&hagement's Discussion and Analysis of Finar€@dition and Results of
Operation—Quarterly Results and Seasonality.” Beeausignificant percentage of our net sales andatipg income are generated in the
quarter ending December 31, we have limited abititgompensate for shortfalls in December quagksssor earnings by changes in our
operations or strategies in other quarters. A St shortfall in results for the quarter endidgcember 31 of any year could have a mat
adverse effect on our annual results of operatmmson the market price of our common stock. Owartguly results of operations may also
fluctuate significantly based on such factors khe:timing of new store openings; the amount ofsaéts contributed by new and existing
stores; the success of our store expansion anchtaa program; the timing of certain holidays @ates events; changes in our merchandise
mix; general economic, industry and weather coodgithat affect consumer spending; and actionsmipetitors, including promotional
activity.

A failureto grow or maintain our comparable store sales may adversely affect our results of operations.

Our comparable store sales results haetuthted in the past, and we believe such fluctoatinay continue given the current housing
market and uncertainty of consumer spending. Ompesable store sales decreased 3.1% for fiscalgrebed June 30, 2012, decreased 1.2%
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, and iseaa.2% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 uhpredictability of our comparable
store sales may cause our revenue and resulteodtams to vary from quarter to quarter, and aantinipated decline in revenues or
operating income may cause our stock price todhtet significantly. A failure to grow or maintainrocomparable store sales results could
have a material adverse effect on our results efaijpns.

A number of factors have historically atfst, and will continue to affect, our comparablmatsales results, including: competition;
general regional and national economic conditiomdement weather; consumer trends, such as lesalsp due the impact of high
unemployment rates; changes in our merchandiseauixability to distribute merchandise efficienttyour stores; timing and type of sales
events, promotional activities or other advertisingw merchandise introductions; and our abilitgxecute our business strategy effectively.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our certificate of incorporation, and bylaws and Delaware law contain provisionsthat could make it more difficult for a third party to
acquire us without the consent of our board of directors.

Provisions in our certificate of incorpaoat and bylaws will have the effect of delayingppeventing a change of control or changes in
our management. These provisions include the fafigwthe ability of our Board of Directors to isssieares of our common stock and
preferred stock without stockholder approval (sobje applicable NASDAQ requirements); a requiretribat stockholder meetings may
only be called by our President and Chief Execuificer, the Chairman of the Board or at the \erittequest of a majority of the directors
then in office and not our stockholders; a prolobitof cumulative voting in the election of direcdpwhich would otherwise allow less than a
majority of stockholders to elect director candégatthe ability of our Board of Directors to makéier or repeal our bylaws without further
stockholder approval; and the requirement for adgan
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notice for nominations for directors to our Boafdirectors and for proposing matters that candiecaupon by stockholders at stockholder
meetings.

Because we do not presently have plans to pay dividends on our common stock, stockholders must look solely to appreciation of our
common stock to realize a gain on their investment.

On February 1, 2008, our Board of Directarted to terminate the declaration of an annust aividend. The Board of Directors will
consider the full range of alternatives with regtarthe use of any excess cash flow in the futOre.future dividend policy is within the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will deparpon various factors, including our businessariitial condition, results of operations,
capital requirements and investment opportunifiesordingly, stockholders must look solely to appa¢ion of our common stock to realiz
gain on their investment. This appreciation mayaumtur.

The price of our common stock has fluctuated substantially over the past several years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the
future.

From June 30, 2011 to June 30, 2012, twbrtg price of our common stock ranged from a I6W305 per share to a high of $4.91 per
share. We expect our stock to continue to be sutijdtuctuations as a result of a variety of fastancluding factors beyond our control,
which have been included throughout this Annuald®epn Form 10-K. We may fail to meet the expeotadiof our stockholders or securities
analysts at some time in the future, and our spoide could decline as a result.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Stores.  We lease all of our stores from unaffiliateddtparties normally through non-cancelable leasgsept one company-owned
store located adjacent to our distribution facil®y June 30, 2012, the remaining terms of the nitgjof our store leases range from six
months to five years and only 3.3% of our storedsshave remaining terms greater than five yedes.average initial term of a store lease is
approximately five years with options available fenewal. We intend to continue to lease all ofrmew stores from unaffiliated third parties.
Leases may contain renewal clauses, which are eiteouted, and may contain additional terms reggrgercentage of rent payments. Our
store leases typically include "kick clauses," vihédlow us, at our option, to exit the lease 28@amonths after entering the lease if sales at
the store do not reach a stipulated amount inghsd.

Didtribution Facilities and Corporate Headquarters.  We own approximately 1,390,770 square feetisifidution facilities and a
104,675 square foot building which houses our cafeooffice in Dallas, Texas.

We lease our e-commerce fulfillment cewnfesipproximately 59,000 square feet, which expine&pril of 2014. Additionally, we have
leases on three parcels of land of approximatefyGBD square feet, two of which are for trailerag@ and the third parcel is for a 30,000
square foot building. The leases for trailer steragpire in February 2014 and December 2023 ankbése for the third parcel and building
expires in February 2016. We believe our curresiridiution facilities are adequate to meet our nexpients for the next several years. We
may, however, need to acquire or lease additiomathouse space in approximately three to four yieamscommodate our distribution
requirements as our store base grows.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

During 2001 and 2002, we were named agendant in three complaints filed in the Superiou@ of California in and for the County
of Los Angeles. The plaintiffs sought to certifgtatewide class made up of some of our currenf@mnaer employees, which they claim are
owed compensation for overtime wages, penaltiesrardest. The plaintiffs also sought attorney&ssfand costs. In October 2003, we ent
into a settlement agreement with a sub-class aktipdaintiffs consisting of managers-in-trainingl ananagement trainees which was paid in
November 2005 with no material impact to our finahstatements. A store manager class was certifledever, in August 2008, our moti
for de-certification of the class of store manageas granted, thereby dismissing their class acti@im. The California Court of Appeals
upheld the trial court's de-certification order d@hd California Supreme Court has declined to me\leat decision. We settled the individual
claims of two plaintiffs in the lawsuit with no neaital impact on our financial statements. In additiapproximately 75 individual plaintiffs
initially chose to pursue their claims individualind filed separate lawsuits against us allegiregtove violations. In May 2012, the compsz
entered into a settlement and release agreemdntheitremaining plaintiffs to dismiss all pendiagvbuits in the aggregate amount of
$463,000, which includes all attorney fees and gastsions, and will release the company from ast manager litigation.

A similar lawsuit, which also alleges claitoncerning meal and rest periods, was filed sn@e County, California in 2004, by
managers, managers-in-training and assistant mes)agel an amended complaint was filed in July 200December 2008, the four
plaintiffs abandoned their class action claim aadehelected to pursue their individual claims ali asclaims under California's Private
Attorney General Act with respect to such allegatiorThe Court has found in our favor on all claansg a final judgment has been entered.
The plaintiffs have chosen not to pursue an appeabmpanion lawsuit alleging the same claims vilas in Orange County Superior Court
in December 2008 on behalf of approximately thfayr additional individual plaintiffs. This lawsuitcludes a claim under California's
Private Attorney General Act. Of the 34 plaintifige have settled 11 cases representing the staragaaplaintiffs for approximately,
$185,000, including all attorney fees. Trial datase been set for September 2012 for the remagdags and settlement negotiations are
ongoing.

In December 2008, a class action lawsud filad by hourly, non-exempt employees in the SigpeCourt of California in and for the
County of Los Angeles, alleging claims covering traea rest period violations. The parties are prégeonducting discovery. The court has
certified the class on a limited issue relatingh® use of on-duty meal period agreements.

In July 2009, a lawsuit alleging failurepay overtime compensation was filed in Alabamalbgrmer store manager. The plaintiff
sought to certify a class action made up curredtfarmer store managers. In fiscal 2010, we filedguest with the court to deny this moti
The court has not ruled, and no trial date has been

In July 2012, a discrimination claim wasdi with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commissity our former CEO. The Company
believes this charge is without merit and interadgigorously defend this matter.

We intend to vigorously defend all pendawgions. We do not believe these or any other lpgaieedings pending or threatened against
us would have a material adverse effect on ounfifed condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases @&quity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the NASDA®I@I Select Market, Inc. under the symbol "TUESeTollowing table sets forth for the
periods indicated the high and low sales pricesshare as reported on the NASDAQ Select Global ktark

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

First quartel $ 491 $ 3.3t

Second quarte $ 3.9t $ 3.0t

Third quartel $ 3.8t $ 3.1z

Fourth quarte $ 487 $ 3.6¢
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201

First quarte $ 544 $ 3.51

Second quarte $ 5.9 $ 45¢

Third quartel $ 552 $ 3.7¢

Fourth quarte $ 52 $ 391

On August 27, 2012, the last reported patee for our common stock on the NASDAQ GlobalegeMarket, Inc. was $5.29 per share.
As of August 27, 2012, there were approximately hd®lers of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 20122011, we did not declare nor pay any annwsil dvidends on our common stock. On
February 1, 2008, our Board of Directors votecetontinate our then existing annual cash dividen@ Bbard of Directors considers a full
range of alternatives with regard to the use of@mess cash flow.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans
The information contained in Item 12 ofstiiorm 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.
Repurchases of Common Equity

On August 22, 2011, the Company's Boamigéctors adopted a share repurchase program mirsuevhich the Company is authoriz
to repurchase from time to time shares of CommoglStup to a maximum of $5.0 million in aggregateghase price for all such shares (the
"Repurchase Program™). On January 20, 2012, thep@oy's Board of Directors increased the authoondibr stock repurchases under the
Repurchase Program from $5.0 million to a maximdi$1®.0 million. The Repurchase Program does neé @ expiration date and may be
suspended or discontinued at any time. The Bodidwaluate the Repurchase Program each year anel ¢an be no assurances as to the
number of shares of Common Stock the Company ejlirchase. During the twelve month period ended 3002012, 1,714,867 shares
were repurchased under the Repurchase Programeaeeamge cost of $3.52 per share and for a tosl(eacluding commissions) of
approximately $6.1 million. All of such shares wergchased by the Company in open-market trangectio
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Repurchases of equity securities duringhihee months ended June 30, 2012 are listed ifotlosving table:

Total

Number of Approximate
Shares Dollar Value of
Purchased as Shares That
Total Part of Publicly May Yet Be
Number of Average Announced Purchased Under
Shares Price Paid Plans or the Plans or
Period Repurchased(1) per Share(2) Programs(3) Programs(2)(3)
April 1 through April 30 37,18¢ $ 3.9( 37,18: $ 3,989,41
May 1 through May 3: 19,060 $ 3.9( 19,06: $  3,914,60
June 1 through June : 1,52¢ $ 4.01 152¢ $ 3,908,45:
Total 57,777 $ 3.9C 57,77 % 3,908,45.

Q) Includes shares of Common Stock withheld by the @amyg in connection with the vesting of equity aveandder the
Company's equity incentive plans.

(2)  Excludes commissions.

3) On August 22, 2011, the Company's Board of Direcémlopted a share repurchase program pursuanichb thie
Company is authorized to repurchase from timente tshares of Common Stock, up to a maximum of $#llin in
aggregate purchase price for all such shares Repurchase Program™). On January 20, 2012, the @oyroBoard of
Directors increased the authorization for stockurepases under the Repurchase Program from $3i0mi a
maximum of $10.0 million. The Repurchase Programsduwot have an expiration date and may be suspemded
discontinued at any time. The Board will evalu&ie Repurchase Program each year and there candssm@nces as
the number of shares of Common Stock the Compaltyepurchase. As of June 30, 2012, 1,714,867 shzaee been
repurchased under the Repurchase Program forl@tstia(excluding commissions) of approximatelyl$gillion, of
which 1,623,507 shares were purchased by the Copiparpenmarket transactions and 91,360 shares were witldy
the Company in connection with the vesting of ggaivards under the Company's equity incentive p
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Stock Price Performance

The following graph illustrates a companisd the cumulative total stockholder return (chamgstock price plus reinvested dividends)
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 20110,22009 and 2008, of (1) our common stock, (2)3S&8& 500 Index, and (3) the S&P 500
retailing index, a pre-established industry indekdved by us to have a peer group relationship thié¢ Company. The chart assumes that
$100 was invested on July 1, 2008, in our commocksand each of the comparison indices, and asstiratall dividends were reinvested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Tuesday Morning, the S&P 500 Index, S&P 500 &ailing Index,
Old Peer Group, and New Peer Group

W i i i L ]
&/07 6/08 6/09 610 &M1 62
—&— Tuesday Morning — A — S&P 500 === -~ S&P 500 Retailing Index
—3— Old Pear Group —i— New Peer Group
* $100 invested on 6/30/07 in stock or index, inahgdieinvestment of dividends.

Fiscal year ending June 30.
Copyright© 2012 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hilbmpanies Inc. All rights reserved.

These indices are included for comparatiwgoses only and do not necessarily reflect managés opinion that such indices are an
appropriate measure of the relative performandbettock involved, and are not intended to forecabe indicative of possible future
performance of the Company's common stock.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth the seleatedsolidated financial and operating data fortttelve months ended June 30, 2012, 2011,
2010, 2009, and 2008.

The selected consolidated financial andatprey data should be read in conjunction with "gament's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation" and @nsolidated financial statements and relatedsiiereto included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

Twelve Months Year Ended June 30,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands except per share amounts and numbef stores)

Statement of Operations

Data:
Net sales $ 812,78. $ 821,15( $ 828,26! $ 801,72: $ 885,28:
Cost of sale: 503,91¢ 507,83 514,27( 505,58! 562,57¢
Gross profit 308,86:¢ 313,31t 313,99! 296,13 322,70:
Selling, general and

administrative expenst 301,42° 295,27: 293,85( 293,70: 297,85:
Operating incomi 7,437 18,04: 20,14¢ 2,43t 24,85
Net interest and othe

expense (2,030) (2,496 (3,47¢6) (2,504 (2,719
Income (loss) before incom

taxes 5,401 15,54° 16,66¢ (69) 22,13:
Income tax expense (benel 1,49¢ 5,96¢ 5,921 (25) 7,63¢
Net income (loss $ 391 $ 957¢ $ 10,74¢ 3 (44) $ 14,49¢
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 02z $ 02t $ 0.0C $ 0.3t

Diluted 0.0¢ 0.2z 0.2t 0.0c 0.3t

Weighted average shares
outstanding

Basic 41,98¢ 42,49: 41,92( 41,50¢ 41,43¢
Diluted 42,53¢ 43,07¢ 42,48 41,50¢ 41,49«
Dividends per common sha $ — — ¢ $ —  $ —

Operating Data:
Number of stores

Beginning of perioc 861 852 857 84z 81C

Opened during peric 24 44 26 35 48

Closed during perio (33 (35 (31) (20 (16)
Open at end of peric 852 861 852 857 842
Comparable store sales

increase(1), (decreas (3.2)% (1.2% 2.2% (12.5% (7.€)%
Average sales per store(2)i  $ 9%5C $ 97z $ 97z $ 93¢ $ 1,07¢
Inventory turnover(3 1.8 1.6 2.C 2.1 2.C
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As of June 30,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital $ 188,93¢ $ 188,02( $ 174,85' $ 163,71! $ 168,13(

Inventories 265,63( 264,36: 239,19 223,62¢ 240,99¢

Total asset 397,16 379,15¢ 350,53t 319,24: 341,77¢

Total debt, including current

portion — — — — 8,50(

Total stockholders' equi 260,19: 260,13: 247,89 235,35: 232,91:

@ Stores are included in the same store sales ctitouka the beginning of the quarter following tm@niversary date of tl
store opening. A store that relocates within threesgeographic market or modifies its availableirstzace is still
considered the same store for purposes of this atatipn. The number of days our stores are openfluetuate from
period to period.

(2)  Average sales per store is the sum of the avemdgs per store for each quarter.

3) Inventory turnover is the ratio of cost of salesiterage inventory. Average inventory is calculdigdaking the averag
of the previous year-end and quarter-end invertrgls throughout the year.

(4) A significant portion of our revenues and net eagriare realized during the period from Octobesugh December

while the increase in merchandise purchases irapagipn for this holiday selling season occursrioramonths.

24




Table of Contents

Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operation

The following discussion and analysis should beli@aconjunction with "Selected Financial Data" aodr consolidated financial
statements and related notes thereto included @lsemin this Form 10-K.

Overview

We sell upscale, name brand home furnishings, hearss, gifts and related items significantly belatail prices charged by
department stores, specialty and catalogue retaile852 stores throughout 43 states. We havecuargvent-based selling
strategy that creates a sense of urgency and maritefor our customer base.

In fiscal 2012 our store base decreased approxiynhi@%o, while it increased by 1.1% in fiscal 204hd decreased by
approximately 0.6% in fiscal 2010. The store basaehsed by nine stores in fiscal 2012, increagedre stores in fiscal
2011, and decreased by five stores in fiscal 2010.

We have a credit agreement providing for an asased five-year senior secured revolving creditifagthe "Revolving
Credit Facility") in the amount of up to $180.0 lih. Our indebtedness under the credit facilitgésured by a lien on
substantially all of our assets. On November 17,120e entered into a third amendment to the RéwplCredit Facility. This
amendment, among other things, extended the matlate of the Revolving Credit Facility from Deceenld5, 2013 to
November 17, 2016 and removed the "clean down"ipi@mv. The Revolving Credit Facility contains cémteestrictive
covenants, which affect, among others, our ahiditincur liens or incur additional indebtednesd, agsets or merge or
consolidate with any other entity. In addition, are currently required to maintain availability endhe Revolving Credit
Facility of not less than $18.0 million. As of JuB@, 2012, we were in compliance with all requicedenants. As of June 30,
2012 and June 30, 2011, we did not have any oulistaforrowings on our Revolving Credit Facility.

Under the Repurchase Program, we acquired 1,714}8&s of our Common Stock for $6.1 million durihg twelve-month
period ended June 30, 2012.

Our industry has been negatively impacted by macamromic pressures that affect consumer spendiaggased supply and
competition as well as a highly competitive andnpotional environment. Since 2008, we have expeedmncconsistent sales
trends, reporting both negative and positive comiplersales. During that time, however, we haveicoat to generate
positive operating income on an annual basis.

Our industry has been negatively impacted by irs@daompetition within an already highly compeétpromotional
environment; a trend we believe is likely to con#rin the near term and potentially longer. Asosebut retailer of home
furnishings and housewares, we currently comped@aga diverse group of retailers, including dapant and discount stort
specialty and e-commerce retailers and mass messhahich sell, among other products, home furmigteind houseware
products similar and often identical to those wie ¥ée also compete in particular markets with bsgantial number of
retailers that specialize in one or more typesashé furnishing and houseware products that we Melhy of these competito
have substantially greater financial resources talo. Our competitors' greater financial resosiaw them to initiate and
sustain aggressive price competition, initiate bemanarketing campaigns that reach a larger custbase, fund ongoing
promotional events and communicate more frequemitly existing and potential customers.

In response to increased competition in our ingusie are focused upon various strategic priorities we believe will lessen

the impact of this trend including, but not limittx striving to provide a merchandise assortmiagit ¢volves and adapts to the
changing needs and
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preferences of our customer base, continuing tiewethe individual contributions of the existingst base and making
decisions about the future of individual store tamas including whether to close or relocate theegking to improve overall
supply chain efficiency including review of opeaatal practices such as freight costs, vendor payteems, distribution
processes and increasing inventory turns, andregrie optimize our marketing plan by maximizingffic, increasing
comparable store sales and expanding the currstdroer base, while also improving cost efficientie are also striving to
optimize the acquisition of inventory to best matcistomer demand.

. Our ability to continuously attract buying opporities for closeout merchandise and to anticipatesumer demand as close
merchandise becomes available represents an untgrtaour business. By their nature, specificselout merchandise items
are generally only available from manufacturergsendors on a non-recurring basis. As a result, evaal have long-term
contracts with our vendors for supply, pricing oc@ss to products, but make individual purchasesibexs, which are often for
large quantities. Although we have many sourcas@fichandise and do not foresee any shortage edaldsnerchandise in tl
near future, we cannot assure that manufacturersrators will continue to make desirable closeoetahandise available to
us in quantities or on terms acceptable to usairdbr buyers will continue to identify and takevadtage of appropriate buyi
opportunities.

. In order to expand our store base for both newestand relocations, we are negotiating for upgraited. We plan to allow
leases to expire for underperforming stores or w/ladternative locations are not available at aat#@ptlease rates. We contit
to evaluate the most appropriate size of our store=rms of selling square footage productivity.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis iethapon our consolidated financial statements, whave been prepared in accordance
accounting principles generally accepted in theté¢hBtates. The preparation of these financiabistants requires us to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of cedssets, liabilities, sales and expenses, aatkretisclosure of contingent assets
liabilities. On a recurring basis, we evaluate significant estimates which are based on histosgakrience and on various other
assumptions that we believe are reasonable und@irtumstances. Actual results may differ fronsthestimates under different assumpt
or conditions.

We believe the following critical accourgipolicies affect our more significant judgments &stimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Inventory —Our inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket using the retail inventory method for storeentory and the specil
identification method for warehouse inventory. Amtauare removed from inventory based on the reteéintory method which applies a
cost-to-retail ratio to our various retail dedunscsuch as sales, markdowns and shrink, to artiwaracost of sales. Buying, distribution,
freight and certain other costs are capitalizepaatof inventory and are expensed as cost of saléise related inventory is sold. The retail
inventory method, which is used by a number of@mmpetitors, involves management estimates withrtetp items such as markdowns.
Such estimates may significantly impact the endinwgntory valuation at cost as well as the amofigross margin recognized.

We capitalize into inventory all merchamd@osts and certain costs incurred to purchaseibdite and deliver merchandise to our stores
in order to more accurately match the cost of nmeandise with the timing of its sale. These costsrarieided in cost of sales when the
merchandise is sold. Other cost of sales compomecitsle merchandise markdowns, shrink and damaggsh are expensed as they are
incurred.
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We conduct full physical inventories atstthres at June 30 and December 31 to measuretmsobh hand and make appropriate
adjustments to our financial statements. Duringopksrfor which physical observations do not oces,utilize an estimate for recording
shrinkage reserves based on our historical expegirom the results of our physical inventoriesisTéstimate may require a favorable or
unfavorable adjustment to actual results to ther@xhat our subsequent actual physical inventyiidd a different result. Thus, the
difference between actual and estimated amountscanase fluctuations in the quarters ending in Mamth September. Since we conduct
physical inventory counts twice a year, the subjeabature of our shrink percentage is reducedoamdxposure to the risk of a significant
error is minimized. In addition, we have loss-pmien programs that we believe minimize shrinkajéhough inventory shrinkage rates
have not fluctuated significantly in recent yedfrthe actual rates were to differ from our estiegtthen revisions to the inventory shrinkage
expense could be required.

Inventory is the largest asset on our laheet and represented approximately 67%, 7086&¥b of total assets at June 30, 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectively. Inventory increasééoQ or $1.3 million, from June 30, 2011 to JuneZW 2. Inventory increased 10.5%, or
$25.2 million, from June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2@tkimarily due to opportunistic purchases madéegecond quarter of fiscal 2011 in
addition to a shortfall in expected fourth quageles. On a per store basis, inventory increase€d from June 30, 2011 to June 30, 2012 and
increased 9.4% from June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2011.

Markdowns—We have used markdowns to promote the effectidetiamely sale of merchandise that allows us to bestly provide
fresher merchandise to our customers. We alsaeaitiiarkdowns coupled with promotional events tealtiaffic and stimulate sales during
non-sales event periods. Markdowns may be temporpgrmanent. Temporary markdowns are for a dasigihperiod of time with
markdowns recorded based on quantities sold dtinegeriod. Permanent markdowns may vary througth@utjuarter or year in timing with
higher markdowns traditionally recorded in the d¢er ended June 30 and December 31 due primardigasonal merchandise.

Permanent markdowns are charged to casdle$ immediately based on the total quantitiekand in the stores. We review all
inventory each quarter to ensure all necessaryngrictions are taken to adequately value our itorgrat the lower of cost or market throu
the retail inventory method. These actions whialoive actual or planned permanent markdowns arsidered by management to be the
appropriate prices to stimulate demand for the hrrdise. In addition to regularly reviewing invantéevels to identify slow-moving
merchandise, management also considers currergrdaitipated demand, customer preferences, age rchianedise and seasonal trends in
determining markdowns. Our markdowns, as a pergergétotal sales, have been generally consistent fear to year. Beginning with the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, we implementéxhtegy to more closely monitor and control our kdamwns of inventory to avoid marking
down items that continued to sell through at reabtrates. We believe this strategy contributeaverall margin by focusing our
markdowns more on inventory that was truly slow mgwand less on the basis of age in inventory al@manges in markdowns from period-
to-period are discussed as a part of our ResulBpefations analysis below. Actual required permanerkdowns could differ materially
from management's initial estimates based on fudustomer demand or economic conditions. The efftatl.0% permanent markdown in
the value of our inventory at June 30, 2012 woshklift in a decline in gross profit and diluted &aga per share for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012 of $2.7 million and $0.04, respebtive

Insurance and Self-Insurance ReservesWe use a combination of insurance and self-ina@gtans to provide for the potential
liabilities associated with workers' compensatipeneral liability, property insurance, director anfficers' liability insurance, vehicle liability
and employee health care benefits. Our stop logsslper claim are $500,000 for workers' compepsatb250,000 for general liability, and
$150,000 for medical. Liabilities associated whik tisks that are retained by us are
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estimated, in part, by historical claims experierseerity factors and the use of loss developrfzators.

The insurance liabilities we record arenaily influenced by changes in payroll expens&esanumber of vehicles, and the frequency
and severity of claims and include a reserve faint$ incurred but not yet reported. Our estimagsgnves may be materially different from
our future actual claim costs, and, when requidjdsgiments to our estimate reserves are identifredliability will be adjusted accordingly
that period. During the fourth quarter of fiscall2Qwe made reductions of approximately $1.4 millio our workers' compensation liability
and associated current period insurance expensmdaductions in projected actuarially determinéimate losses resulting from
improvements in claims experience. In recent yameshave enhanced our safety programs that haverafed an overall decrease in workers
compensation and general liability losses. Ourisslfirance reserves for workers' compensation,rgéligbility and medical were
$5.9 million, $3.1 million, and $0.9 million at Jei80, 2012, respectively; $6.9 million, $2.6 mitljand $1.3 million at June 30, 2011,
respectively; and $9.1 million, $2.2 million, antl.$ million at June 30, 2010, respectively.

We recognize insurance expenses basedeatatk of an occurrence of a loss including theadend estimated ultimate costs of our
claims. Claims are paid from our reserves and atreat period insurance expense is adjusted fodifference in prior period recorded
reserves and actual payments. Current period insaraxpenses also include the amortization of memjums paid to our insurance carriers.
Expenses for workers' compensation, general ltgtzlhd medical insurance were $3.4 million, $2.8iam and $9.5 million, respectively, for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012; $1.7 millg®2 million and $9.1 million, respectively, foretfiscal year ended June 30, 2011; and
$3.9 million, $3.3 million and $8.5 million, resgiely, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Impairment of long-lived assets—Long-lived assets, such as buildings, equipmemhiture and fixtures, and leasehold improvements,
are reviewed for impairment at least annually aheémever an event or change in circumstances irdi¢hat their carrying values may not
recoverable. If the carrying value exceeds the sfithe expected undiscounted cash flows, the aasetsonsidered impaired. For store-level
long-lived assets, expected cash flows are estiarizeed on the historical cash flows generatethégtore and are adjusted based on
management's estimates of expected future refmlisirment is measured as the amount by whichdhg/iag value of the asset exceeds the
fair value of the asset. Fair value is determingddioted market values, discounted cash flowsterial appraisals, as applicable.
Impairment, if any, is recorded in the period inie¥hthe impairment occurred. We have not recordsdmaaterial impairment charges in
fiscal 2012, 2011, and 2010. As the projectionudfife cash flows requires the use of managemeidgrjent and estimates, actual results
may differ from our estimates. It is possible thdditional charges for asset impairments may berded in the future.

Share-based compensation-The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directnd, through express consent of the
Compensation Committee, our CEO, are authorizeplant stock options and restricted stock awards fime to time to eligible employees
and directors. Those awards may be service or meaioce based. We grant options with exercise pegesl to the market price of our
common stock on the date of the option grant asrdeted in accordance with the terms of our egaitgntive plans. The majority of the
options granted prior to June 30, 2008 vest daibr @eriods of four to five years and expire teargdrom the date of grant. Options granted
after June 30, 2008, typically vest over periodsr to three years with equal portions of the fgvasting on an annual basis and expire ten
years from the date of grant. In accordance with. denerally accepted accounting principles, wegrize compensation expense a
amount equal to the fair value of share-based patsrganted under compensation arrangements. Welagd the fair value of stock options
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Deiiaing the fair value of share-based awards agthat date requires judgment in
developing assumptions, which involve a numberasfables. These variables include, but are notdichio, the expected stock price volat
over the term of the
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awards, the expected dividend yield and expectazksiption exercise behavior. In addition, we alse judgment in estimating the numbe
share-based awards that are expected to be fakfeite

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the ipels indicated, selected statement of operatiotes e@apressed as a percentage of net sales, as
well as the number of stores open at the end df padod.

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2012 2011 2010

Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 62.C 61.¢ 62.1

Gross profi 38.C 38.2 37.¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 37.1 36.C 35.k

Operating incom: 0.¢ 2.2 2.4
Net interest and other exper (0.2 0.3 (0.9
Income tax expens 0.2 0.7 0.7
Net income 0.t 1.2 1.2
Number of stores open at end of per 852 861 852

Selling, general and administrative expsrase comprised of wages and benefits, rent angpaccy costs, depreciation, advertising,
store operating expenses and corporate office.dostiollars, selling, general and administrativereases and decreases are generally
attributable to changes in variable expenses. Ykriexpenses include payroll and related benefiteertising expense and other expenses
such as credit card fees.

Year Ended June 30, 2012 Compared to Year Ended Jer80, 2011

Net sales decreased $8.4 million, or 1.@4812.8 million in fiscal 2012 from $821.2 miltion fiscal 2011, primarily due to a decrease
in sales from comparable stores (stores open sit ¢ year) of 3.1%. The decrease in comparaiie shles was comprised of a decrease in
comparable store transactions of 3.3%, offset bynerease in comparable store average ticket 660.2

Gross profit for fiscal 2012 was $308.9limil, a decrease of 1.4% compared to $313.3 milliogross profit for fiscal 2011. As a
percentage of net sales, gross profit decreasg8.08% in fiscal 2012 compared with 38.2% in the squariod last year. This decrease of C
in gross profit percentage was partly due to hidreght costs resulting from a slight increaséuiel costs combined with slightly higher
markdowns.

Selling, general and administrative expsnsereased $6.1 million, or 2.1%, to $301.4 millia fiscal 2012 from $295.3 million in the
prior fiscal year. As a percentage of sales, sgligeneral and administrative expenses increadéd th 37.1% in fiscal 2012 from 36.0% in
fiscal 2011 in part attributed to severance cob®207 million associated with the departure of Glwief Executive Officer. Excluding the
$2.7 million in costs associated with the deparafrihe CEO, selling, general and administrativet@eas $298.7 million or 36.7% of sales.
On a per store basis adjusted selling, generabdndnistrative expense, excluding the aforementiarests, increased 2.2% compared with
fiscal year 2011. This increase was primarily dughe decline in expense leverage from lower sadksme and higher rent expense from
increased square footage in certain new and reldcbres.

Net interest and other expense decreas&h$ilion to $2.0 million in fiscal 2012 comparé&al $2.5 million in fiscal 2011. This decrease
was primarily attributable to a decrease in tat&iiest expense related to the improved terms ofimended credit facility and lower
borrowings in fiscal 2012.
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Income tax expense decreased to $1.5 miltidiscal 2012 from $6.0 million in the prior €ial year. Our effective tax rate decreased
from 38.4% in fiscal 2011 to 27.6% in fiscal 20&P|arge part, due to the recognition of the Hiret Retention Tax Credit in fiscal year 2012
and the reduction of non-deductible expenses aafigear 2012.

Year Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to Year Ended Jer80, 2010

Net sales decreased $7.1 million, or 0.824821.2 million in fiscal 2011 from $828.3 milfian fiscal 2010, primarily due to a decrease
in sales from comparable stores (stores open sit ¢ year) of 1.2%. The decrease in comparaiie shles was comprised of a decrease in
comparable store transactions of 1.7%, offset binamease in comparable store average ticket 860.5

Gross profit for fiscal 2011 was $313.3limil, almost flat compared to $314.0 million in gsgprofit for fiscal 2010. The change in gr
profit was attributable to a decline in net salf#sai by an increase in our gross profit percentégea percentage of net sales, gross profit
increased to 38.2% in fiscal 2011 compared witl®%vin the same period last year. This increase3%0n gross profit percentage was
attributed to a 0.2% decline due to improved progicing from our vendors, 0.2% decline in markaswoffset with a 0.1% increase in
shrink.

Selling, general and administrative expsnsereased $1.4 million, or 0.5%, to $295.3 millia fiscal 2011 from $293.9 million in the
prior fiscal year. The increase was primarily atitable to increased advertising, legal and outbdreight costs, offset by a decrease in
wages and bonus expenses. As a percentage ofsalle®y, general and administrative expenses asaé 0.5% to 36.0% in fiscal 2011 from
35.5% in fiscal 2010. These expenses increasedpen store basis by one half of one percent irafig011 compared with fiscal 2010.

Net interest and other expense decreas@dillion to $2.5 million in fiscal 2011 comparé&al $3.5 million in fiscal 2010. This decrease
was primarily attributable to a decrease in othqreases related to losses on disposal of assetsieztin fiscal 2010 of approximately
$1.4 million.

Income tax expense increased to $6.0 milhdfiscal 2011 from $5.9 million in the prior @al year. Our effective tax rate increased f
35.5% in fiscal 2010 to 38.4% in fiscal 2011 du¢h® increase in book/tax differences in fiscalR20icontrast to favorable tax settlement
the prior year that did not recur.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have funded our operations with casivdlgenerated from operating activities and borrg&iander our Revolving Credit Facility.
Our cash flows will continue to be utilized for tbhperation of our business and the use of any exzash will be determined by the Board of
Directors. Our borrowings have historically peakethe quarter ended September 30 as we build tovetevels prior to the holiday selling
season. Given the seasonality of our businesgrtoint of borrowings under our Revolving Creditigemay fluctuate materially
depending on various factors, including the timgesr, our needs and the opportunity to acquirehadise inventory. We have no off-
balance sheet arrangements or transactions wittnsotidated, limited purpose or variable interadities, nor do we have material
transactions or commitments involving related pessor entities.

Net cash flows provided by and used in afpeg activities for the fiscal years ended Jung2®12, 2011, and 2010, were $59.5 million,
$(0.1) million, and $32.1 million, respectively.mhe fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, cash prd\igleoperating activities was primarily d
to net income of $3.9 million combined with an iease in accounts payable of $35.8 million and qustdent for depreciation expense of
$14.5 million.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014h ased in operating activities was primarily dueé¢crease in accrued liabilities of
$5.6 million and an increase in inventory of $2&iflion offset by net
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income of $9.6 million, an increase in accountsgtédg of $2.7 million, an increase in deferred inedlaxes of $3.4 million and an adjustment
for depreciation expense of $16.1 million. The @&=e in inventory was due to opportunistic purchaséventory and the shortfall of sales
in the fourth quarter. For the fiscal year endeaeJB0, 2010, cash provided by operating activitias primarily due to net income of

$10.7 million combined with an increase in accoyrggable of $12.4 million and an adjustment forrdefation expense of $15.6 million.
These sources of cash flow from operations wergebffrimarily by an increase in inventory of $1&iflion. The increases in accounts
payable and inventory were due to increased pueshafsinventory to meet customer demand. A siganifigortion of our revenues and net
earnings are realized during the period from Oattfse@ugh December while an increase in merchamulisehases in preparation for this
holiday selling season occurs in prior months. Gaghcash equivalents as of June 30, 2012, 20812@0, were $39.7 million, $19.4
million, and $23.5 million, respectively. There Haen no material change in our vendor paymentyoli

Net cash used in investing activities was tb capital expenditures of $13.8 million, $2fillion, and $17.4 million for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectidalyng each year, capital expenditures were priméar store fixtures and leasehold
improvements for new and existing stores, distidrutenter equipment and improvements, informagigstems improvements, and corporate
office equipment and improvements. In fiscal 2048,expect to spend in the range of $12-15 millimnchpital expenditures, primarily for
fixtures for new and existing stores, distributmemter equipment and improvements, and systemsadegiand improvements. Capital
expenditures will be provided by funds generatedifoperations.

Net cash used in financing activities 05&2million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2063 primarily due to a change in cash
overdraft of $18.8 million and the purchase of steg shares of $6.1 million. Net cash providedibgricing activities of $16.4 million for tt
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was primarily duee¢hange in cash overdraft of $15.4 million. keth provided by financing activities of
$3.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30,2@Ahs primarily due to a change in cash overdfa®304 million.

On February 1, 2008, our Board of Directarted to terminate the declaration of an annusthcividend. The Board of Directors will
consider the full range of alternatives with regerdhe use of any excess cash flow in the future.

We have a credit agreement providing foasset-based, five-year senior secured revolvieditfacility (the "Revolving Credit
Facility") in the amount of up to $180.0 millionu®indebtedness under the credit facility is sedimga lien on substantially all of our assets.
On November 17, 2011, we entered into a third ammemd to the Revolving Credit Facility. This amendip@mong other things, extended
the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facifitym December 15, 2013 to November 17, 2016 andvenhthe "clean down" provision.
The Revolving Credit Facility contains certain ritive covenants, which affect, among others, ahility to incur liens or incur additional
indebtedness, sell assets or merge or consoliddieany other entity. In addition, we are curremiguired to maintain availability under the
Revolving Credit Facility of not less than $18.0lion.

At June 30, 2012, we had no amounts oudstgrunder the Revolving Credit Facility, $8.6 maifi of outstanding letters of credit and
availability of $123.5 million under the Revolvirigredit Facility. Letters of credit under the Revoly Credit Facility are primarily for self
insurance purposes. We incur commitment fees a6 @p375% on the unused portion of the Revolvingd@rFacility. Any borrowing under
the Revolving Credit Facility incurs interest aBIOR or the prime rate, depending on the type ofdwaing, plus an applicable margin. These
rates are increased or reduced as our averageadailability changes. Interest expense of $2.3anilfor fiscal 2012 was due primarily to
commitment fees of $1.1 million, the amortizatidrfinancing fees of $0.9 million and $0.3 million i
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interest expense on borrowings. As of June 30, 20&2vere in compliance with all required covenants

We anticipate that our net cash flows frgperations and borrowings under our Revolving Gredcility will be sufficient to fund our
working capital needs, planned capital expendituaed interest payments for the next twelve months.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangement$ &une 30, 2012.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contmatbbligations at June 30, 2012 and the effeath sbligations are expected to have on our
liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in theaunsls):

Payments Due by Period

1 Year 2-3 4-5 More than
Contractual Obligations Total or Less Years Years 5 Years
Non-cancelable operating leas $ 183,81¢ $ 62,36! $ 80,59! $ 34,03¢ $ 6,82¢
Maintenance, insurance and taxes ¢
operating lease 28,86¢ 9,79¢ 12,657 5,34¢ 1,07z
Commitment fees on Revolving Cre
Facility 2,63¢ 603 1,20¢ 83C —
Total $ 21532' $ 72,76( $ 94,45 $ 40,21F $ 7,89

We do not consider merchandise purchasersttd be contractual obligations due to designeéedellation dates on the face of the
purchase order. Contractually required paymentsi@intenance, insurance and taxes on our leaseénties are estimated above as a
percentage of rent based on historical trends. & hewunts can vary based on multiple factors iretuthflation, macroeconomic conditior
various local tax rates and appraised values ofental properties. Commitment fees on our Revgi@nedit Facility are calculated based on
contractual commitment fees and standby lettereditfees assuming our current balances of zetth®@fRevolving Credit Facility and lette
of credit totaling $8.6 million. It is likely we Wiincur additional interest expense than that @iaied above as we may borrow amounts, from
time to time, under our Revolving Credit Facility.

Quarterly Results and Seasonality

The following tables set forth some of quarterly financial data for the eight quartersezhdune 30, 2012. The quarterly information is
unaudited but has been prepared on the same Isabis audited financial statements included elsesvimethis Form 1. We believe that ¢
necessary adjustments have been included to priesdythe unaudited quarterly results when readanjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes includesdisre in this
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Form 10K. The results of operations for any quarter arenegessarily indicative of the results for anyfetperiod. (In thousands, except
per share data and comparable store sales.)

Quarters Ended

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2011 2011 2012 2012

Net sales $ 170,650 $ 273,05 $ 172,69¢ $ 196,37¢
Gross profit 64,97 104,81! 65,56¢ 73,51:
Operating income (los! (8,499 25,48t (6,097 (3,459
Net income (loss (5,690 15,857 (4,245 (2,009
Basic earnings (loss) per

share (0.19) 0.37 (0.10) (0.0%)
Diluted earnings (loss) pe

share (0.1%) 0.37 (0.10 (0.0%)
Comparable store sales

increase (decreas (4.1)% (4.€)% (3.2% 0.2%

Quarters Ended
Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2010 2010 2011 2011

Net sales $ 172,75¢ $ 279,31 $ 174,31t $ 194,76t
Gross profit 66,79¢ 107,17¢ 66,69¢ 72,64
Operating income (lost (3,489 28,37( (5,245 (1,599
Net income (loss (2,645 17,26: (3,635 (1,402
Basic earnings (loss) pel

share (0.06) 0.4C (0.0¢) (0.09)
Diluted earnings (loss) p

share (0.0¢) 0.4C (0.0¢) (0.09)
Comparable store sales

increase (decreas 4.3% (3.2% 0.7% (4.5%

Our quarterly results of operations maytiate based upon such factors as the numberraindjtof store openings, the amount of net
sales contributed by new and existing stores, tixeofrmerchandise sold, pricing, store closingsedocations, competitive factors and gen
economic and weather-related conditions. The tinsiihgales events could impact the weighting ofshitween quarters. We expect to
continue to experience seasonal fluctuations inbosiness, with a significant percentage of oursaéts and operating income being
generated in the quarter ending December 31, whiadhdes the holiday selling season.

Inflation

In our opinion, the overall effect of irtilan has not had a material effect on our resdltsperations in any of the fiscal years of 2012,
2011, or 2010. We cannot assure that inflation moll materially affect our results of operationsha future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2011, the FASB issued Accountingu&lards Update No. 2011-04: Amendments to Ach@®mon Fair Value Measurement
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRf& Amendments change the wording used to desitrébeequirements in U.S. GAAP
for measuring fair value and for disclosing infotima about fair value measurements. Specificalig,amendments clarify the intent around
applying existing fair value measurements and d&ale requirements, as well as, those that chapgetiaular principle or requirement for
measuring fair value or disclosing information abfair value measurements. These amendments aeedpplied prospectively for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2011, ang egaplication is not permitted. Due to the levelrafnateriality of the Level 1, 2 and 3
assets and liabilities that are addressed withethes
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amendments, the Company does not believe thatfahgse amendments will have a material effect®oansolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standardddte No. 2011-08omprehensive
Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensieerne. This standard eliminated the option to presempments of other
comprehensive income as part of the statementafgas in stockholders' equity. The preparer isrgitie option to present all nonowner
changes in stockholders' equity in a single comtirsustatement of comprehensive income or in twarsép but consecutive statements. This
alternative presentation of comprehensive incongdféective for fiscal years, and interim periodshin those years, beginning after
December 15, 2011, with early adoption permittddshccounting standard update is not effectiveaiferCompany until July 1, 2012. Due to
the level of immateriality of its other comprehamsincome, the Company decided not to pursue @adption of this standard.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to various market riskduding changes in foreign currency exchange ratesterest rates. Market risk is the
potential loss arising from adverse changes in etgskices and rates, such as foreign currency exgghand interest rates. Based on our
market risk sensitive instruments outstanding akuag 30, 2012, as described below, we have detednthat there was no material market
risk exposure to our consolidated financial positiesults of operations or cash flows as of swath.dVe do not enter into derivatives or
other financial instruments for trading or speduapurposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates.  We enter into foreign currency forward contsaetth major financial institutions, which
participate on our Revolving Credit Facility, to mage and reduce the impact of changes in foreigerey exchange rates on contractual
merchandise purchases with certain internationaflees, primarily in Euros. During the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2012, the only transactions
we hedged were for inventory purchase orders pladtdforeign vendors for which the purchase oried to be settled in the vendor's
foreign currency. The periods for the forward fgreexchange contracts correspond to the periotteediedged transactions. Gains and Ic
on forward foreign exchange contracts are reflectde statement of operations and were immateyiak as a whole in the fiscal year en
June 30, 2012.

The estimated fair value of foreign curngnontracts represents the amount required to @rttepffsetting contracts with similar
remaining maturities based on quoted market prisedune 30, 2012, fair value of all outstandingtcacts was immaterial. A large
fluctuation in exchange rates for these currenoiesgd have a material effect on their fair valueywkver, because we only use these forward
foreign currency contracts to hedge future invgnfrrchases at a fixed price in the vendor's foreigrrency at the time the purchase order is
made and such hedging activities have been imnagtariy fluctuations in the exchange rate shoutdhmaterially affect us.

You can find more information about the@atting policies for our forward foreign currenayntracts and our financial instruments in
Note 1 of the notes to our consolidated finandiaiesnents included elsewhere in this Forr-K.

Interest Rates. The Company's Revolving Credit Facility is aiahle interest rate agreement, and therefore taffidlay fluctuations in
market interest rates. Borrowings may incur intea¢®ither LIBOR or the prime rate depending antlrm of the borrowing plus an
applicable margin. In fiscal 2012, the Company imed $0.3 million in interest expense on borrowirigge to the minimal period of time the
Company sustains its outstanding borrowings, is@ers its exposure to adverse market interesflatiations to be minimal. As of
June 30, 2012, the Company did not have any lomg-tiebt outstanding. More information about detl loy the Company is available in
Note 3 of the notes to our consolidated finandiaiesnents included herein this Forn-K.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia

The following consolidated financial statats of Tuesday Morning Corporation and its subsies and Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm are includechis Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Page

Index Num%er
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 208 2Girl F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Ifigears ended June 30, 2012, 2011,

and 201( F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferfiscal years ended June 30, 2(

2011, and 201 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended June 30, 2012, 2011,

and 201( F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fofifoal years ended June 30, 20

2011, and 201 F-7

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotents on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Control Procedures

Based on our management's evaluation (vétticipation of our principal executive officercaaur principal financial officer), our
principal executive officer and our principal fir@al officer have concluded that our disclosuretoma and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) under the Seesriixchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchaoty) were effective as of June 30,
2012 to ensure that information required to beld&sd by us in this Report on Form 10-K was (1prded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in tlee&ities Exchange Commission's rules and formg2ndccumulated and communicated to
our management, including our principal executind principal financial officers, to allow timely disions regarding required disclosure.

A control system, no matter how well coneei and operated, can provide only reasonableabsiilute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Because of inhereritaiions in all control systems, no evaluation ofitols can provide absolute assurance that
all control issues, if any, within a company haeeib detected. Accordingly, our disclosure contaold procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the g our disclosure control system are met asdset forth above, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer have concludédsed on their evaluation as of the end of thge&overed by this report, that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectiyirdvide reasonable assurance that the objeativesr disclosure control system were r

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Tuesday Morning is respoeditil establishing and maintaining adequate intexoiatrol over financial reporting as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15(d)-15(f) untlez Exchange Act. Tuesday Morning's internal adrdgver financial reporting is designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléljeof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accountiimgimies.
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Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Therefore, even
systems determined to be effective can provide mrdgonable assurance with respect to financiedratnt preparation and presentation.

Our management (with the participation of principal executive officer and our principaidincial officer) assessed the effectiveness of
Tuesday Morning's internal control over financigporting as of June 30, 2012. In making this agsest management used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Colrtrintegrated Framework. Bas
on our assessment, we believe that, as of Juriz03@, Tuesday Morning's internal control over ficiahreporting is effective based on those
criteria.

The Company's independent registered palsiiounting firm has issued an attestation repothe effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of @80, 2012. The report follows on the next page.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tuesdaiviorning Corporation

We have audited Tuesday Morning Corpor&iorternal control over financial reporting aslahe 30, 2012, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framédwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). Tuesday Morning Corporationanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecagsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management's
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing. Our responsibility is to express an opiném the company's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withgstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogietr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fic& reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jde reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Tuesday Morning Corporatioaintained, in all material respects, effectivieinal control over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdsoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Tuesday MorningdZatien as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and thescktainsolidated statements of
operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows#&zh of the three years in the period ended 30n2012, of Tuesday Morning Corporation
and our report dated August 30, 2012 expressedqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Fort Worth, Texas
August 30, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The report of Independent Registered Pukticounting Firm is included in page F-2 of thisrifol0-K.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal abtver financial reporting that occurred during tast fiscal quarter that have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materiallyeaffour internal control over financial reporting.

ltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by this Item 1Grisorporated herein by reference to the disclofaad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thxchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2§$2 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

We have adopted a "Code of Ethics for Seilmancial Officers" that establishes the ethatahdards to be followed by the persons
serving as principal executive officer, principaancial officer, principal accounting officer corttroller, or persons performing similar
functions. We have also adopted a "Code of Condbet'establishes the business conduct to be fetidvy all of our officers, employees ¢
members of our Board of Directors. Both are avédlaim our website atww.tuesdaymorning.coonder "Investor Relations—Corporate
Governance." Any amendment or waiver to our Codgtbics for Senior Financial Officers will be podten the Company's website.

There have been no changes to the procetiyrerhich stockholders may recommend candidatesuioBoard of Directors that have
occurred in the year ended June 30, 2012.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 1irisorporated herein by reference to the applicdlselosure found in our definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Reigun 14A of the Exchange Act in connection witheEday Morning's 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Médrs

The information required by this Item 12neorporated herein by reference to the applicdigelosure found in our definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Riun 14A of the Exchange Act in connection witheBday Morning's 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides informationcat our common stock that may be issued upon thecese of options under equity
compensation plans approved by stockholders dsedidcal year ended June 30, 2012. We do not &ilayequity compensation plans that
were not approved by our stockholders.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities Future Issuance
to be Issued Under Equity
Upon Exercise of Weighted-Average Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Exercise Price of (excluding securities
Warrants and Rights Outstanding Options, reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (thousands) Warrants and Rights (thousands)

(@ (b) ©
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Security
Holders 2,89t $ 9.2t 720,98(
Equity Compensation Plans N
Approved by Security
Holders — — —

Total 2,89t % 9.2¢8 720,98(
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traresctions, Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13risorporated herein by reference to the applicdlselosure found in our definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Riun 14A of the Exchange Act in connection witheBday Morning's 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14nesorporated herein by reference to the applicdigelosure found in our definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Riun 14A of the Exchange Act in connection witheBday Morning's 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@  The following documents are filed as part of thisri 10-K.

(1) Financial Statements:
The list of financial statements required by tiésri is set forth in Item 8.
2) Financial Statement Schedules:

All financial statement schedules called for undegulation S-X are not required under the relatsttiictions and/or are not
material and, therefore, have been omitted orrariedied in the consolidated financial statementsobes thereto included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

?3) Exhibits: See the list of exhibits in the "Exhibitelex" to this Form 10-K, which are incorporatestdin by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, régistrant has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
Date: August 30, 201

By: /sl MICHAEL MARCHETTI

Michael Marchetti
Interim Chief Executive Officer,
President and Chief Operating Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidielow by the following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

Name Title Date

/sl MICHAEL MARCHETTI

Michael Marchett

/sl STEPHANIE BOWMAN

Interim Chief Executive Officer,

President and Chief Operating Officer August 30, 2012

(Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer

August 30, 2012
Stephanie Bowma

/sl BRUCE A. QUINNELL
Chairman of the Board

August 30, 2012
Bruce A. Quinnel

/sl STEVEN R. BECKER

Director August 30, 2012
Steven R. Becke
/s/ DAVID B. GREEN
Director August 30, 2012
David B. Greer
/s WILLIAM J. HUNCKLER, IlI
Director August 30, 2012
William J. Hunckler, 1l
/s/ STARLETTE JOHNSON
Director August 30, 2012
Starlette Johnsa
/s RICHARD S. WILLIS
Director August 30, 2012

Richard S. Willis
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tueddayning Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselitlbilance sheets of Tuesday Morning Corporatiai dgne 30, 2012 and 2011, and the
related consolidated statements of operationskistdders' equity, and cash flows for each of theegtyears in the period ended June 30,
2012. These financial statements are the respdihsitfithe Company's management. Our responsjtidito express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tildasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Tuesday Morning Corporation at June 30, 2012 arid 28nd the consolidated results of its operaténtsits cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended June 30, 2012, in corifpmrith U.S. generally accepted accounting pritesg

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Oghtdoard (United States), Tuesday
Morning Corporation's internal control over finaglaieporting as of June 30, 2012, based on crigmtablished in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated August 30,
2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Fort Worth, Texas
August 30, 2012
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Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except for per share data)

June 30,
2012 2011
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 39,74C $ 19,40(
Inventories 265,63( 264,36
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 11,357 13,68
Deferred income taxe 53¢ 447
Total current asse 317,26:. 297,89:.
Property and equipment, r 75,77 76,98:
Deferred financing cos 2,60z 2,50¢
Other asset 1,531 1,77¢
Total Assets $ 397,16 $ 379,15t
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl 98,00¢ 81,04
Accrued liabilities 30,29t 28,76(
Income taxes payab 19 65
Total Current liabilities 128,32: 109,87.
Deferred ren 3,262 3,19¢
Income taxes payal—non curren 57¢ 65¢
Deferred income taxe 4,81 5,291
Total Liabilities 136,97t 119,02:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, autdri0,000,000
shares, none issued or outstanc — —
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, authofi2gé¢00,000
shares; 43,436,404 shares issued and 41,721,58@mding at
June 30, 2012 and 43,185,203 shares issued artdralitey at
June 30, 201 434 432
Additional paic-in capital 210,32 208,13(
Retained earning 55,57+ 51,66
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (59 (89)
Less: 1,714,867 common shares in treasury, atabdtne 30, 201 (6,092) —
Total Stockholders' Equit 260,19: 260,13:
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equ $ 397,16 $ 379,15t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ 812,78. $ 821,15( $ 828,26!
Cost of sale: 503,91¢ 507,83« 514,27(
Gross profi 308,86 313,31t 313,99!
Selling, general and administrative exper 301,42° 295,27. 293,85(
Operating incomi 7,43 18,04: 20,14¢
Other income (expense
Interest expens (2,259 (3,11¢) (2,94%)
Interest incomi 9 2 14
Other income (expense), r 21t 62C (54%)
(2,030 (2,49¢) (3,47¢)
Income before income tax 5,407 15,54’ 16,66¢
Income tax expens 1,49¢ 5,96¢ 5,921
Net income $ 391t $ 957¢ $ 10,74¢
Earnings Per Share
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 02: $ 0.2t
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 02z $ 0.2t
Weighted average number of common she
Basic 41,98¢ 42,49: 41,92(
Diluted 42 ,53¢ 43,07¢ 42,48

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Balance at
June 30,
2009

Comprehensiv
income:

Net income

Change in
unrealized
gain on
foreign
exchange
contracts, ne
of tax

Comprehensiv
income
Shares issued
or canceled
in
connection
with
employee
stock
incentive
plan and
related tax
effect
Shares issued
in
connection
with
exercises of
employee
stock option
Amortization
of share-
based
compensatic
expense

Balance at
June 30,
2010

Comprehensiv
income:

Net income

Change in
unrealized
loss on
foreign
exchange
contracts, ne
of tax

Comprehensiv
income

Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(In thousands)

Accumulated
Other

Additional C hensi Total
Common Stock Palitlflr:1a Retained on?rr])(r:((em;e:swe Treasury Stock%(;ilders'

Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Equity
42,837 $ 42¢ $ 203,63 $ 31,33 $ 42 $ — $ 235,35
— — —  10,74¢ — — 10,74¢
— — — — 167 — 167
10,91t
14 — (500) — — — (500)
40 2 77 — 79
— — 2,04t — — — 2,04t
43,02: $ 43C $ 205,25! $ 42,087 $ 12t $ — $ $247,89:
— — — 9,57¢ — — 9,57¢
— — — — (214) — (214)
9,36¢



Shares issued
or canceled
in
connection
with
employee
stock
incentive
plan and
related tax
effect

Shares issued
in
connection
with
exercises of
employee
stock option

Excess tax
benefit

Amortization
of share-
based
compensatic
expense

Balance at
June 30,
2011

Comprehensiv
income:

Net income

Change in
unrealized
loss on
foreign
exchange
contracts, ne
of tax

Comprehensiv
income
Shares issued
or canceled
in
connection
with
employee
stock
incentive
plan and
related tax
effect
Shares issued
in
connection
with
exercises of
employee
stock option
Excess tax
benefit
Treasury stocl
Amortization
of share-
based
compensatic
expense

Balance at

11€ 2 1) — — — 1
47 — 60 — — — 60
— — 98¢ — — — 98¢
— — 1,83¢ — — — 1,83¢
4318 $ 432 $208,13( $ 51,661 $ (89) — $ $260,13
— — — 391 — — 3,91¢
— — — — 35 — 35
3,94¢

192 2 — — — — 2
58 — 77 — — — 77
— — 28¢ — — — 28¢
(1,715 — — — — (6,099 (6,092)
— — 1,83¢ — — — 1,83¢




June 30, 201: 41,72 $ 434 $ 210,32¢ $ 55,57« $ (54) $ (6,099 $ $260,19;

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Years Ended June 30,
2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 391 $ 9,567¢ $ 10,74¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by

(used in) operating activitie

Depreciatior 14,51¢ 16,10: 15,58:
Amortization of financing fee 76C 1,01¢ 1,05¢
Shar-based compensation expel 1,98i 2,332 2,20¢
Loss on disposal of assk 46( 23¢ 1,38:
Deferred income taxe (572) 3,35¢ 261
Other noi-cash item: 35 (2149 167
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Inventories (1,427) (25,667 (15,729
Prepaid and other current ass 2,321 (3,929 441
Other asset 247 (59 (29¢)
Accounts payabl 35,75 2,731 12,41¢
Accrued liabilities 1,53¢ (5,557%) 5,552
Deferred ren 64 17 (990
Income taxes payab (123) (15) (829)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 59,48: (62 32,07:
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure (13,765 (20,600 (17,437
Proceeds from sale of ass — 10C —
Net cash used in investing activiti (13,765 (20,500 (17,437
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under revolving credit facili 92,33¢ 152,35 61,60¢
Repayments under revolving credit facil (92,339  (152,35) (61,60
Change in cash overdr: (18,79) 15,40( 3,391
Proceeds from the exercise of employee stock op 77 60 79
Excess tax benefit related to exercise of stoclonp 28¢ 98C —
Purchase of treasury sto (6,092) — —
Payment of financing fee (85¢) — (370
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (25,376 16,44( 3,10(
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 20,34( (4,122 17,73¢
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 19,40( 23,52: 5,78:
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 39,74C $ 19,40( $ 23,52
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paic $ 1,422 $ 1952 $ 1,79
Income taxes (refunds received) p (392) 3,32¢ 5,65¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We operated 852 discount retail stores3istates as of June 30, 2012 (861 and 852 stodemat30, 2011 and 2010, respectively). We

sell close-out home furnishings, housewares, giftsrelated items, which we purchase at below veaddeprices. Our stores are generally
open seven days a week and focus on periodic "satatts,"” that occur in each month except Januahdaly, which historically have been
weaker months for retailers. Our stores are nognuddised for up to five days during the monthsariulry and July as we conduct physical
inventories at all of our stores.

(@)

(b)

(©

Basis of Presentation-The accompanying consolidated financial statemietade the accounts of Tuesday Morning Corporati
Delaware corporation, and its wholly-owned subsid& All intercompany balances and transactione feeen eliminated in
consolidation. We operate our business as a sopgeating segment.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents are comprised of araditreceivables and all highly liquid instrumentth
original maturities of three months or less. Caghivealents are carried at cost, which approximédessalue. At June 30, 2012 and
2011, credit card receivables from third party eoner credit card providers were $8,800 and $3,6&pectively.

Inventories—Inventories, consisting of finished goods, ar¢estat the lower of cost or market using the reétaiéntory method for
store inventory and the specific identification haat for warehouse inventory. Amounts are removenchfinventory based on the
retail inventory method which applies a cost-tailettio to our various retail deductions (salesrkdowns, shrink, etc.) to arrive at
cost of sales. Buying, distribution, freight coatsl certain other expenses are capitalized a®pizmtentory and are expensed as cost
of sales as the related inventory is sold. Thepéalzed expenses included in ending inventorgleat $31.8 million and $29.5 millic
at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We expge$&e.3 million, $68.0 million, and $68.9 millioaf such capitalized inventory
costs in cost of sales for the fiscal years endee B0, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

We conduct semi-annual physical inventories to mesagquantities on-hand and make appropriate adgrgsrio our financial
statements. During periods for which physical obsgons do not occur, we utilize an estimate faording shrinkage reserves, based
on past historical trends of physical inventoryutess These shrinkage reserves may require a faleoox unfavorable adjustment to
actual results to the extent our subsequent aptyadical inventories yield a different result. Waeumarkdowns to promote the
effective and timely sale of merchandise. Temponaaykdowns are for a designated period of time witltkdowns recorded based
guantities sold during the period. Permanent maskdovary in timing throughout the year, but arerghd to cost of sales
immediately based on total quantities on-hand énstiores. We review all inventory at the end oheggarterly period to ensure all
necessary price actions are taken to adequatelg \alr inventory at the lower of cost or markete3éactions which involve actual
planned permanent markdowns are considered by raareay to be the appropriate prices to stimulateashehfior the merchandise.
Actual required permanent markdowns could diffetarially from management's initial estimates baseduture customer demand
economic conditions.
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)
(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property and Equipment-Rroperty and equipment are stated at cost. Buiddifugniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements and
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line s the estimated useful lives of the assets lksis:

Estimated Useful Lives

Buildings 30 year
Furniture and fixture 3to 7 year
Leasehold improvemen Shorter of lease life or life of improvem:
Equipment 5to 10 yeat

Upon sale or retirement of an asset, the relatetaitd accumulated depreciation are removed franaczounts and any gain or los
recognized in the statement of operations. Experabtfor maintenance, minor renewals and repagrexgpensed as incurred, while
major replacements and improvements are capitalized

(e) Deferred Financing Costs-Deferred financing costs represent fees paid imeotion with obtaining bank and other long-term
financing. These fees are amortized over the tdrineorelated financing using the effective intéregthod.

® Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and lial@itare recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable tiedihces between the financial statement carryimguats of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Defétex assets and liabilities are measured usirigtetst tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those tempuadéferences are expected to be recovered oesefilhe effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rateésdsgnized in income in the period that includesdhte of enactment. We file our
annual federal income tax return on a consolidageis. Furthermore, we recognize uncertain taxipasiwhen we have determined
it is more likely than not that a tax position wikk sustained upon examination. However, new infition may become available or
applicable laws or regulations may change therebylting in a favorable or unfavorable adjustmerdrnounts recorded.

(9) Self Insurance ReservesWe use a combination of insurance and self-insiggatans to provide for the potential liabilitiessaciated
with workers' compensation, general liability, peoy insurance, director and officers' liabilitysurance, vehicle liability and
employee health care benefits. Our stop loss lipetsclaim are $500 for workers' compensation, $2b5@eneral liability, and $150
for medical. Liabilities associated with the rigkat are retained by us are estimated, in parigtgrical claims experience, severity
factors and the use of loss development factors.

The insurance liabilities we record are primanifiuenced by changes in payroll expense, salespbaunf vehicles, and the frequency
and severity of claims; and include a reserve faints incurred but not yet reported. Our estimae=ttrves may be materially differ
from our future actual claim costs, and, when regfliadjustments to our estimate reserves are fiehtihe liability will be adjusted
accordingly in that period. During the fourth qearof fiscal 2011, we
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

()

(k)

made reductions of approximately $1,400 to our woskcompensation liability and associated cunpeniod insurance expense due to
reductions in projected actuarially determinedntie losses resulting from improvements in clairpedence. Our self-insurance
reserves for workers' compensation, general ltgtaind medical were $5,900, $3,000, and $900 & 30n2012, respectively; $6,9(
$2,600, and $1,300 at June 30, 2011, respectiaaly$9,100, $2,200, and $1,200 at June 30, 204Peckvely.

We recognize insurance expenses based on thefdateoocurrence of a loss including the actual estimated ultimate costs of our
claims. Claims are paid from our reserves and atreat period insurance expense is adjusted fodifference in prior period
recorded reserves and actual payments. Curremdp@surance expenses also include the amortizafionr premiums paid to our
insurance carriers. Expenses for workers' compemsajeneral liability and medical insurance weBe490, $2,800 and $9,500,
respectively, for the fiscal year ended June 302281,700, $3,200 and $9,100, respectively, ferfibcal year ended June 30, 2011;
and $3,900, $3,300 and $8,500, respectively, fefigtal year ended June 30, 2010.

Revenue Recognitiea-Sales are recorded at the point of sale and coneeyaf merchandise to customers. Sales are netwhs ani
exclude sales tax.

Advertising—Costs for direct mail, television, radio, newspap@ad other media are expensed as the advertisedisetake place.
Advertising expenses for the fiscal years ende@ By 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $28,875, $28,081$26,963, respectively. We
do not receive money from vendors to support ouegising expenditures. As of June 30, 2012, theae prepaid advertising of $315
compared to prepaid advertising of $522 at Jun@GD].

Use of Estimates-The preparation of the consolidated financialestents in conformity with U.S. generally acceptecoainting
principles requires management to make estimaassumptions that affect the reported amountss#ta and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the consolidated financial statememtd,the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actuallte could differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments—The fair value of financial instruments is detemed by reference to various market data and oileation
techniques as appropriate. The only financial iments we carry are our revolving credit facilihddoreign currency exchange
contracts for merchandise purchases denominatiedaign currency.

We enter into foreign currency forward exchangetiamts with a major financial institution that peipates in our revolving credit
facility to manage and reduce the impact of flutitwres in foreign currency exchange rates on ceairtractual merchandise
purchases with international vendors between tHeraand payment dates, which generally approxi@ate6 months. We do not
utilize derivative financial instruments for tradior speculative purposes.

We account for our foreign currency forward contsaas cash flow hedges in accordance with geneaatigpted accounting princip
of the United States. Changes in the fair valughefcontracts that are considered to be effecti@eexorded in other comprehensive
income (loss)
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)
(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

until the hedged item is recorded in earnings. diffe cash flow hedges are reclassified out of otieenprehensive income (loss) and
into cost of sales when the hedged inventory id.stte ineffective portion of cash flow hedges@eorded in other income or loss
and were not material for the periods presented.dffect of foreign exchange contracts on our fof@rposition or results of
operations historically and for the periods presdris and has been immaterial.

()] Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived &gseBe Disposed GfLong-lived assets, principally property and equéprn
and leasehold improvements, are reviewed for impatit when circumstances indicate the carrying vafia asset may not be
recoverable. For assets that are to be held amtj asémpairment is recognized when the estimatetisaounted cash flows associ:
with the asset or group of assets is less than ¢heiying value. If impairment exists, an adjustinis made to write the asset down to
its fair value, and a loss is recorded as the rdiffee between the carrying value and fair valug.\i@dues are determined based on
guoted market values, discounted cash flows orriateappraisals, as applicable. Assets to be dézbokare reported at the lower of
the carrying amount or fair value less costs tb bapairment of long-lived assets has not had senal impact on our financial
position, results of operations or liquidity foetperiods presented.

(m) Share-Based CompensatieAWe recognized share-based compensation costs thedexquirements of U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
Amortization of share-based compensation du

the perioc $ 1,832 $ 1,83¢ $ 2,04¢
Amounts capitalized in inventol (625) (500 (715)
Amount recognized and charged to cost of got

sold T7¢ 99¢ 87¢€
Amounts charged against income for the peric

before tax $ 1,987 $ 2,332 $ 2,20¢

Consistent with prior years, the fair value of eatdtk option granted during the fiscal year endietk 30, 2012 was estimated at the
date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricimadel. The expected term of an option is basedunmistorical review of employee
exercise behavior based on the employee classuixeor nonexecutive) and based on our consideration of theiging contractu
term if limited exercise activity existed for a t@n employee class.

The risk-free interest rate is the constant matuisk free interest rate for U.S. Treasury instemts with terms consistent with the
expected lives of the awards. The expected vdjaidibased on both the historical volatility ofr@tock based on our historical stock
prices and implied volatility of our traded stoghtions.
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

(9)

These factors were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
Weighted average risk-free
interest rate 0.4-1.€% 1.3-2.2% 1.8-3.t%
Expected life of options (year 3.2-4.¢ 3.1-5.4 4.4-6.C
Expected stock volatilit 68.4-83.5% 62.5-82.2% 64.8- 75.t%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%

Net Income Per Common ShareBasic net income per common share for the fisealy ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, was
calculated by dividing net income by the weightgdrage number of common shares outstanding for gexwbd. Diluted net income
per common share for the fiscal years ended Jun2(@@2, 2011, and 2010, was calculated by dividiegincome by the weighted
average number of common shares including the ibgfatilutive common stock equivalents. See Note 10

Recent Accounting Pronouncementin April 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standapdate No. 2011-04: Amendments to
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclo&equirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The Amendmeminge the
wording used to describe the requirements in USAKBfor measuring fair value and for disclosingarrhation about fair value
measurements. Specifically, the amendments cléré@yntent around applying existing fair value megaments and disclosure
requirements, as well as, those that change aphatiprinciple or requirement for measuring faatue or disclosing information abc
fair value measurements. These amendments areapgtied prospectively for annual periods beginraftgr December 15, 2011, a
early application is not permitted. Due to the lesfdmmateriality of the Level 1, 2 and 3 assatd #abilities that are addressed with
these amendments, the Company does not believartiaf these amendments will have a material effiadts consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&¢'FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update 20d.1-05Comprehensive
Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehengieerne. This standard eliminated the option to presenmpmments of other
comprehensive income as part of the statementasfgds in stockholders' equity. The preparer isrgilie option to present all
nonowner changes in stockholders' equity in a singhtinuous statement of comprehensive income twa separate but consecutive
statements. This alternative presentation of cohmreive income is effective for fiscal years, ameiim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2011, with early aidopgpermitted. This accounting standard updatetsffective for the Company
until July 1, 2012. Due to the level of immatetialbf its other comprehensive income, the Compagidied not to pursue early
adoption of this standard.

Other Comprehensive Income (LossComprehensive income (loss) represents our changguiity (net assets), during a period, fi
transactions and other events and circumstancesriom-owner sources. It includes all changes intgguring a period except those
resulting from investments or distributions by @owners. The components of comprehensive incooss)(are

F-11




Table of Contents

TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)
(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

reported in the Consolidated Statements of Stodne! Equity. Comprehensive income (loss) inclutleschange in fair value of our
forward foreign currency contracts.

(2) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, net of accumuldegateciation, consisted of the following at:

June 30,

2012 2011
Land $ 850¢ $ 8,504
Buildings 44,24¢ 43,197
Furniture and fixture 97,38: 88,95:
Equipment 55,80¢ 54,78:
Leasehold improvemen 15,61¢ 14,25(
221,55¢ 209,68!
Less accumulated depreciati (145,78 (132,70
Net property and equipme $ 7577 % 76,98.

(3) DEBT

We have a credit agreement providing foasset-based, five-year senior secured revolvieditcfacility (the "Revolving Credit
Facility") in the amount of up to $180.0 millionu®indebtedness under the credit facility is sedimga lien on substantially all of our assets.
On November 17, 2011, we entered into a third ammemd to the Revolving Credit Facility. This amendip@mong other things, extended
the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facifitym December 15, 2013 to November 17, 2016 andvenhthe "clean down" provision.
The Revolving Credit Facility contains certain riegive covenants, which affect, among others, ahility to incur liens or incur additional
indebtedness, sell assets or merge or consoliddteany other entity and limit the amount of divndis that can be paid. In addition, we are
currently required to maintain availability undbetRevolving Credit Facility of not less than $16illion.

At June 30, 2012, we had no amounts oudstgrunder the Revolving Credit Facility, $8.6 maifi of outstanding letters of credit and
availability of $123.5 million under the Revolvit@redit Facility. Letters of credit under the Revoly Credit Facility are primarily for self
insurance purposes. We incur commitment fees a6 @p375% on the unused portion of the Revolvingd@rFacility. Any borrowing under
the Revolving Credit Facility incurs interest aBIOR or the prime rate, depending on the type ofdwaing, plus an applicable margin. These
rates are increased or reduced as our averageadailgability changes. Interest expense of $2.3anilfor fiscal 2012 was due primarily to
commitment fees of $1.1 million, the amortizatidifinancing fees of $0.9 million and $0.3 million interest expense on borrowings. As of
June 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all rezplicovenants.
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)
(4) ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the follovgin

June 30,
2012 2011
Sales ta) $ 267 $ 2,42¢
Selfinsurance reserve 10,28: 10,77:
Wages & benefit 4,93 4,80¢
Property taxe 1,561 1,361
Other expense 10,841 9,391
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 30,29 $ 28,76(
(5) INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense consists of:
Current Deferred Total

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Federa $ 1508 $ (391 $ 1,11«

State and loce 561 (181) 38C

Total $ 2,066 $ (572) $ 1,49
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Federa $ 2,22: $ 3,09C $ 5,31

State and loce 391 265 65¢€

Total $ 2612 $ 3,358 $ 5,96¢
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2C

Federa $ 4621 $ 701 $ 5,32

State and loce 53¢ 60 59¢

Total $ 516( $ 761 $ 5,921

A reconciliation of the expected federaldme tax expense at the statutory income tax odteetactual tax expense follows (based upon
a tax rate of 35%):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010

Expected federal income tax expe $ 1892 $ 5447 $ 5,83
State income taxes, net of related federal tax

benefit 214 403 441

Other, ne (612) 12z (359

Total tax expens $ 1,492 $ 596¢ $ 5,921
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)
(5) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differencest tive rise to significant portions of the defertax assets and liabilities were as follows:

June 30,
2012 2011 2010
Deferred tax asset

Current:

Other payroll and benefi $ 1,847 $ 84t $ 884

Inventory reserve 89t 87z 45¢

Seltinsurance reserve 3,73¢ 4,09: 4,73¢

Shar+based compensatic 4,261 4,03¢ 3,35¢

Other current liabilitie: 1,02( 1,26¢ 27¢%
Noncurrent:

Deferred ren 1,26% 1,221 1,212
Total gross deferred tax ass $ 13,02 $ 12,33¢ $ 10,92«

Deferred tax liabilities

Current:

Inventory cost: $ 7951 $ 7,58 $ 7,31t

Prepaid supplie 3,27¢ 3,08¢ 2,68t
Non-current:

Property and equipme 6,07t 6,51¢ 2,41¢
Total gross deferred tax liabiliti¢ 17,30: 17,18¢ 12,41¢
Net deferred tax liabilit $ 427¢ $ 4850 $ 1,49¢

We expect the deferred tax assets at JOn203.2 to be fully recovered and the deferreditilities at June 30, 2012 to be fully
satisfied through the reversal of taxable tempodiifgrences in future years as a result of nodminess activities. Accordingly, no
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets wasidened necessary as of June 30, 2012.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—The Company or one of its subsidiaries files inedax returns in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictions. Wigw exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.B. federal, state and local income
examinations by tax authorities for years before®@he Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has condliaseexamination of the Company for
years ending on or before June 30, 2(
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)
(5) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ergdlamount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Balance at June 30, 20 $ 1,03t
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 33
Reductions for settlemer (429)
Balance at June 30, 20 $ 63¢
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 22
Balance at June 30, 20 $ 661
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 18
Reductions for lapse of statute of limitatic (101)
Balance at June 30, 20 $ b57¢

The balance at June 30, 2012, that, ifgeed, would affect the effective tax rate is $5¥VBe Company classifies and recognizes
interest and penalties accrued related to unrezedriax benefits in income tax expense. During/ges ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and
2010, we recognized, net of tax effect $18, $28,$28, in interest, respectively. We paid interaest,of tax, of $92 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010. No interest was paid in thggar ended June 30, 2011 and 2012.

We do not anticipate that the total amafninrecognized tax benefits will significantly iease or decrease the effective tax rate within
12 months of June 30, 2012.

(6) SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS

Performance Shares and Performance Units. As of June 30, 2012, there were 60,000 perfanaahares and 60,000 performance
units outstanding. Each performance share repeserintingent right to receive one share of comstock and each performance unit
represents a contingent right to receive $8.0@shcAs such, performance units are accountedsfarliability award. The performance
shares and performance units vest in one-thircchrasover a three year period, subject to the Coypachievement of a performance target
during an applicable performance period. Any ureggterformance shares and performance units anthef the performance period are
rolled over and become eligible to vest in subsagperformance periods. Any performance share anfipnance units that are unvested as
of the close of business on October 31, 2015 wis€ and be forfeited as of such time.

Stock Option Awards—We have established the Tuesday Morning Corpardii97 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan, as amended
(the "1997 Plan"), the Tuesday Morning Corpora2004 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan, as amendeel (2004 Plan"), and the Tuesday
Morning Corporation 2008 Long-Term Equity IncentRkan (the "2008 Plan"), which allow for the graugtiof stock options to directors,
officers and key employees of, and certain othgrikdividuals who perform services for us and auvsdiaries. The 1997 Plan authorized
grants of options to purchase up to 4,800,000 shafrauthorized, but unissued common stock. Equitsirds may no longer be granted under
the 1997 Plan but options granted under the plastil exercisable. The 2004 Plan and the 2008 Rlahorize grants of options to purchase
up to 2,000,000 and 2,500,000 shares, respectiokfythorized, but unissued common stock.
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(6) SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

Stock options are awarded with a strikeggt a fair market value equal to the averaghehigh and low trading prices of our common
stock on the date of grant in the 1997 Plan an@@®2 Plan. Stock options are awarded with a spilee at a fair market value equal to the
closing price of our common stock on the date efghant in the 2008 Plan.

Options granted under the 1997 Plan an@®d Plan typically vest over periods of one @ fyears and expire ten years from the date
of grant while options granted under the 2008 Byaitally vest over periods of one to three yeard axpire ten years from the date of grant.
Options granted under the 2004 Plan and the 2088MRay have certain performance requirements iitiaddo service terms. If the
performance conditions are not satisfied, the ostare forfeited. No options with performance ctinds were outstanding as of June 30,
2012. The exercise prices of stock options outstgnon June 30, 2012, range between $0.63 and $3btich represents the fair market
value of our common stock on the date the optiomewranted. At June 30, 2012, all shares availadier the 1997 Plan had been granted
and the 1997 Plan terminated pursuant to its tasmsf December 29, 2007. There were 384,483 and3B6&hares available for grant under
the 2004 Plan and the 2008 Plan at June 30, 264Rectively.

Following is a summary of transactions tintpto the 1997 Plan, 2004 Plan and 2008 Plarongtior the fiscal years ended June 30,
2012, 2011, and 2010 (share amounts in thousands):

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Number Average Remaining Aggregate
of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Years) Value
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2009 (vestec
expected to ves 2,981 11.3% 6.0z 2,492
Granted during yes 68 4.0t
Exercised during the ye (40 2.02
Forfeited or expired during ye (89 7.64
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2( 2,92¢ 11.4: 5.0¢ $ 3,051
Granted during yes 51z 3.84
Exercised during the ye (46) 1.2¢
Forfeited or expired during ye (597) 9.3¢
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2( 2,79¢ 10.6¢ 57¢ $ 3,94¢
Granted during yee 373 3.57
Exercised during the ye (59 1.32
Forfeited or expired during ye (219 20.1¢
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2( 2,89t 9.2t 25: $ 3,48¢
Exercisable at June 30, 20 2,207 $ 10.9¢ 22¢ $ 3,04«

The weighted average grant date fair vafustock options granted during the fiscal yeameehJune 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, was
$2.02, $2.06, and $2.42, respectively. The intcinsilue of vested shares at June 30, 2012 is $3,044

F-16




Table of Contents

TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharamounts)
(6) SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

There were options to purchase 58,703,686ahd 39,268 shares of our common stock, whicle wrercised during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2012, June 30, 2011, and June B0, @3pectively. The aggregate intrinsic valustotk options exercised was $78, $60
$79 during the fiscal years ended June 30, 201 30, 2011, and 2010, respectively. At June 30220 had $1,066 of total unrecognized
share-based compensation expense related to gttiok®that is expected to be recognized over ghted average period of 1.87 years.

The following table summarizes informateout stock options outstanding at June 30, 2di&¢samounts in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Life Exercise Price Number Exercise Price

Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding (Years) Per Share Exercisable Per Share
$0.63- $0.63 6,66¢ 6.7C $ 0.65 6,66€ $ 0.6<
$1.07- $1.07 600,00( 1.21 1.07 600,00( 1.07
$1.24- $3.56 672,29¢ 5.4¢ 2.4z 358,21: 1.5C
$3.57- $3.61 22,75( 9.57 3.5¢ — —
$3.74- $3.74 467,00( .93 3.74 155,66 3.74
$4.06- $20.01 335,49’ 4.4¢ 12.2¢ 295,41. 13.2¢
$20.04- $35.23 790,99¢ .8€ 23.4¢ 790,99¢ 23.4¢
2,895,21. 25z $ 9.28  2,206,95 $ 10.9¢

Restricted Stock Awards—Under the terms of the 1997 Plan, the 2004 Plaa tiae 2008 Plan, we may also grant restricteckdtmc
directors, officers, key employees and certain olleg individuals who perform services for us amd subsidiaries. Restricted stock awards
are not transferable, but bear certain rights afiroon stock ownership including voting and divideights. Shares are valued at the fair
market price of our common stock at the date ofrdwghe weighted average grant date fair valuestiricted stock awards granted during
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and, 2¢ds $3.57, $4.95, and $3.43, respectively. Shaay be subject to certain performance
requirements. If the performance requirements atenet, the restricted shares are forfeited. Atdbaner 31, 2007, all shares under the 1997
Plan had been granted and the 1997 Plan termipatsdant to its terms as of December 29, 2007. Uth@e2004 Plan and the 2008 Plan, as
of June 30, 2012, there were 190,535 shares ofatest stock outstanding with award vesting perioflene to three years and a weighted
average fair value of $3.79 per share. Compensatipense related to restricted shares is recognatallly over the requisite service period.
Expense recorded for all restricted stock awartiged $668, $1,292, and $1,286 for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. At June 30, 2012, we had $465 of tateecognized share-based compensation experdeded restricted stock awards that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedpof 1.37 years.
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(6) SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

The following table summarizes informateout restricted stock awards outstanding at JOn2@L2 (share amounts in thousands):

Weighted-
Number of Average
Shares Fair Value at
(thousands) Date of Grant
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,151 $ 1.7¢
Granted during yee 197 3.4:
Vested during yee (493 2.2C
Forfeited during yea (52) 2.5¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 804 $ 1.8¢
Granted during yee 15€ 4.9t
Vested during yee (517 2.4¢
Forfeited during yea (39 1.74
Outstanding at June 30, 20 41C $ 2.31
Granted during yes 162 3.57
Vested during yee (352) 1.9¢
Forfeited during yea (29 3.8¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 191 $ 3.7¢

(7) OPERATING LEASES

We lease substantially all store locationder non-cancelable operating leases. Our leasesaly are for a five-year period with two
five-year renewal options and, in very limited circumsts, our leases involve a tenant allowance faeleald improvements. We record 1
expense ratably over the life of the lease begmmiith the date we take possession of or haveigin to use the premises, and if our leases
provide for a tenant allowance, we record the larleimbursement as a liability and ratably anzerthe liability as a reduction to rent
expense over the lease term beginning with thewlateke possession of or control the physicalsstethe premises. Leases for new stores
also typically allow us the ability to terminatée@se after 24 to 36 months if the store does clutge sales expectations. Future minimum
rental payments under leases are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2013 $ 62,368
2014 47,05¢
2015 33,53«
2016 23,201
2017 10,83¢
Thereatftel 6,82:
Total minimum rental paymen $ 183,81¢

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended 3002012, 2011, and 2010 was $82,459, $78,791$29,184, respectively. Rent expense
includes rent for store locations and warehousent Based on sales is not material to our finarst&ements.
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(8) 401(K) PROFIT SHARING PLAN AND STOCK PURCHASE PROGRAM

We have a 401(k) profit sharing plan fa trenefit of our full-time, eligible employees afs&x months of service. Under the plan,
eligible employees may request us to deduct anttibate from 1% to 20% of their salary to the planbject to Internal Revenue Service
Regulations. We match each participant's contmoutip to 4% of participant's compensation. We egpdrtontributions of $1,054, $1,027,
and $983 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 28121, and 2010.

(9) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During 2001 and 2002, we were named agendant in three complaints filed in the Superiou@ of California in and for the County
of Los Angeles. The plaintiffs sought to certifgtatewide class made up of some of our currenf@mnaer employees, which they claim are
owed compensation for overtime wages, penaltiesraadest. The plaintiffs also sought attorney&ssfand costs. In October 2003, we ent
into a settlement agreement with a sub-class aktipdaintiffs consisting of managers-in-trainingl ananagement trainees which was paid in
November 2005 with no material impact to our finahstatements. A store manager class was certifledever, in August 2008, our moti
for de-certification of the class of store manageas granted, thereby dismissing their class acti@im. The California Court of Appeals
upheld the trial court's de-certification order d@hd California Supreme Court has declined to me\leat decision. We settled the individual
claims of two plaintiffs in the lawsuit with no neaital impact on our financial statements. In additiapproximately 75 individual plaintiffs
initially chose to pursue their claims individuadind filed separate lawsuits against us allegiregtove violations. In May 2012, the compsz
entered into a settlement and release agreemdntheitremaining plaintiffs to dismiss all pendiagvkuits in the aggregate amount of $463,
which includes all attorney fees and past decisiand will release the Company from any past maniéggation.

A similar lawsuit, which also alleges claitoncerning meal and rest periods, was filed sn@e County, California in 2004, by
managers, managers-in-training and assistant mes)agel an amended complaint was filed in July 200December 2008, the four
plaintiffs abandoned their class action claim aadehelected to pursue their individual claims ali asclaims under California's Private
Attorney General Act with respect to such allegatiorThe Court has found in our favor on all claansg a final judgment has been entered.
The plaintiffs have chosen not to pursue an appeabmpanion lawsuit alleging the same claims vilasl in Orange County Superior Court
in December 2008 on behalf of approximately thfayr additional individual plaintiffs. This lawsuitcludes a claim under California's
Private Attorney General Act. Of the 34 plaintiffge have settled 11 cases representing the starageaplaintiffs for approximately $185,
including all attorney fees. Trial dates have bsetfor September 2012.

In December 2008, a class action lawsud filad by hourly, non-exempt employees in the SigpeCourt of California in and for the
County of Los Angeles, alleging claims covering traeal rest period violations. The parties are prégeonducting discovery. The court has
certified the class on a limited issue relatingh® use of on-duty meal period agreements.

In July 2009, a lawsuit alleging failurepay overtime compensation was filed in Alabamalbgrmer store manager. The plaintiff
sought to certify a class action made up curredtfarmer store managers. In fiscal 2010, we filedguest with the court to deny this moti
The court has not ruled, and no trial date has been
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(9) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

In July 2012, a discrimination claim wasdi with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commissiy our former CEO. The Company
believes this charge is without merit and interadgiggorously defend this matter.

We intend to vigorously defend all pendawions. We do not believe these or any other lpgaieedings pending or threatened against
us would have a material adverse effect on ounfifed condition or results of operations.

(10) EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
The following table sets forth the compiaiatof basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share data)
Net income $ 3,91: $ 9,57¢ $ 10,74¢
Less: Income to participating securit 30 13C 24t

Net Income attributable to common she $ 3,88: $ 9,44¢ $ 10,50!
Weighted average common shares

outstandin—basic 41,98¢ 42,49: 41,92(
Effect of dilutive stock equivalen 55(C 58E 563
Weighted average commons shares

outstandin—dilutive 42,53¢ 43,07¢ 42,48:
Net income per common sh—basic $ 00 $ 022 $ 0.2¢
Net income per common sh—diluted $ 00¢ $ 022 $ 0.2t

Options representing rights to purchaseeshaf common stock of 1,871,699 at June 30, 20¥85,456 at June 30, 2011 and 1,839,956
at June 30, 2010 were not included in the dilutethiags per share calculation because the assuxeecise of such options would have been
anti-dilutive.

(11) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
A summary of the unaudited quarterly resigdtas follows for the years ended June 30, 26d2811:

Quarters Ended(1)

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2011 2011 2012 2012

Net sales $ 170,650 $ 273,05¢ $ 172,69¢ $ 196,37t
Gross profit 64,97 104,81! 65,56+ 73,51:
Operating income (lost (8,499 25,48¢ (6,097%) (3,459
Net income (loss (5,690 15,851 (4,245 (2,009
Basic earnings (loss) per

share $ (019 $ 037 $ (020 $ (0.05(2
Diluted earnings (loss) per

share $ (019 % 037 $ (010 $ (0.0%
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(11) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (C ontinued)

Quarters Ended(1)

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2010 2010 2011 2011
Net sales $ 172,75¢ $ 279,31 $ 174,31t $ 194,76t
Gross profit 66,79¢ 107,17¢ 66,69¢ 72,64
Operating income (los (3,489 28,37( (5,24%) (1,599
Net income (loss (2,645 17,26: (3,635 (1,402

Basic earnings (loss) persh $  (0.0¢) $ 04C $ (0.0 $ (0.09
Diluted earnings (loss) per
share $ (0.06) $ 04C $ (0.09 $ (0.09

(1) A significant portion of our revenues and net eagsiare realized during the period from Octobesubh
December.

2 Loss per share of $0.05 includes the effect ofremtial obligations associated with the CEO departi
$2.7 million expensed in the fourth quar
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1.1

3.1.z

3.1.2

3.2

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.c

10.2

10.c

10.4.1

10.4.-

10.€

Certificate of Incorporation of Tuesday Morningrgoration (the "Company")
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to therpany's Registration Statement on
Form S-4 (File No. 333-46017) as filed with the &#&tes and Exchange Commission
(the "Commission") on February 10, 19¢

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ingoration of the Company dated
March 25, 1999 (incorporated by reference to ExI8t8 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-74365) adfilvith the Commission on

March 29, 1999

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ingoration of the Company dated
May 7, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhiblt 3to the Company's Form 10-Q as
filed with the Commission on May 2, 20C

Amended and Restated Byws of the Company dated December 14, 2006 (imcatpd
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Fork & filed with the Commission on
December 20, 200¢

Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's RedisteStatement on Form S-4 (File
No. 33:-46017) as filed with the Commission on February19®8)

Amendment No. 1 to the Tuesday Morning Corporali®i7 Long-Term Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi10 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-74365) axfilvith the Commission on

March 29, 1999)

First Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corporafi®A7 Long-Term Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to the Company's Form TPas
filed with the Commission on August 1, 200!

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporataéfieyence to Exhibit 10.12 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (fale333-74365) as filed with the
Commission on March 12, 1999

Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Appendix B to the Company's Definiti Proxy Statement as filed with
the Commission on April 19, 2004

First Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corpora604 Long-Term Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi4 to the Company's Form as
filed with the Commission on August 1, 200!

Second Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corpor&@iid Long-Term Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the Company's Form 8-K as
filed with the Commission on November 8, 200

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement underthesday Morning Corporation
1997 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan and the Tugddarning Corporation 2004
Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Form-K as filed with the Commission on May 3, 200!

Description of Directors Compensation (incorporadigdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 1-Q as filed with the Commission on May 4, 200
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Description

10.7

10.€

10.€

10.1¢

10.11

10.12.:

10.12.c

10.12.2

10.13.:

10.13.c

10.13.¢

10.14

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for dioes under the Tuesday Morning
Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plamc(rporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 8-K as filedhitthe Commission on November 6,
2007)t

Form of Confidentiality Agreement for directorsdarporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 8-K as filedhattie Commission on December 19,
2007)t

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for dicestunder the Tuesday Morning
Corporation 1997 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plamc(rporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 8-K as filedhattie Commission on December 19,
2007)t

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for emplsyunder the Tuesday Morning
Corporation 1997 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plamc(rporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K as filedhattie Commission on December 19,
2007)t

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for emplesyunder the Tuesday Morning
Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plamc(rporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Form 8-K as filedhittie Commission on December 19,
2007)t

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dateti@ber 29, 2008, between the
Company and Kathleen Mason (incorporated by reterém Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Form-K filed with the Commission on October 3, 200:

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Emptoyigreement, dated
January 28, 2009, by and between Tuesday Mornimgdatation and Kathleen Mason
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to tlmrpany's Form 10-Q filed with the
Commission on January 30, 200!

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated EmployAggaement, dated
February 16, 2012, by and between Tuesday Mornorp@ation and Kathleen Mason
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to tlmmpany's Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on February 17, 201:

Employment Agreement dated October 2, 2008, betweeCompany and Michael J.
Marchetti (incorporated by reference to Exhibit2Lth the Company's Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on October 3, 200!

First Amendment to the Employment Agreement, ddsetuary 28, 2009, by and
between Tuesday Morning Corporation and MichaeldWetti (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Forr@lfled with the Commission on
January 30, 2009)

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, datecduBep16, 2012, by and
between Tuesday Morning Corporation and MichaeldWetti (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Form fdt with the Commission on
February 17, 2012)

Form of Performance Stock Award Agreement undefiiieessday Morning Corporation
2004 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Form-K filed with the Commission on October 10, 200
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10.1¢

10.1¢

10.17

10.18.:

10.18.:

10.18.:

10.18.

10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

10.2Z

10.2¢

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement underthesday Morning Corporation
2004 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form-K filed with the Commission on October 10, 20i

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Haoyges under the Tuesday
Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plarcérporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K filed wittetCommission on October 10,
2008)t

Tuesday Morning Corporation 2008 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form fd¢l with the Commission on
November 19, 2008.)

Credit Agreement, dated December 15, 2008, by arahg the Company, Bank of
America, N.A., as administrative agent, Swing Lirender, L/C Issuer, Banc of Ameri
Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LB€ Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint
Bookrunners, Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, asdigation Agent, and the several
banks and other financial institutions or entifiesn time to time parties thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlwrPany's Form 8-K/A filed with the
Commission on December 23, 200t

Joinder and First Amendment to Credit Agreementedidanuary 28, 2009, by and
among the Company, Bank of America, N.A., WellsgeaRetail Finance, LLC and
Regions Bank (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl to the Company's Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on January 30, 20

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated JarB®gr010, by and among the
Company, Bank of America, N.A., Wells Fargo ReHRilance, LLC, and Regions Bank
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmmpany's Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on February 4, 201

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated Novenier2011, by and among the
Company, Bank of America, N.A., Wells Fargo ReHRilance, LLC, and Regions Bank
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to tlmmpany's Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on November 23, 201

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option with Service Awlakgreement under the Tuesday
Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equity Incent®REan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 8-K filed lwihe Commission on March 3,
2009)t

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement Esnployees under the Tuesday
Morning Corporation 2008 Long-Term Equity Incent®Ran (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 8-K filed lwihe Commission on March 3,
2009)t

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreemenit Employees under the Tuesc
Morning Corporation 2008 Long-Term Equity Incent®Ran (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 8-K filed lwihe Commission on March 3,
2009)t

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement underithesday Morning Corporation
2008 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Form-K filed with the Commission on March 3, 200¢

Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement underfhesday Morning Corporation
2008 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Form-K filed with the Commission on February 17, 201
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10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCt

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRE

Form of Performance Stock Award Agreement uniderTftuesday Morning Corporation
2008 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form-K filed with the Commission on February 17, 201

Standstill Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2012nlyamong Tuesday Morning
Corporation, Steven R. Becker, Matthew A. DrapBacker Drapkin Management, L.
Becker Drapkin Partners (QP), L.P., Becker Drapdantners, L.P., BD Partners V, L.P.
and BC Advisors, LLC (incorporated by referenc&ithibit 10.1 to the Company's
Form &K file with the Commission on July 2, 210

Form of Retention Bonus Agreement, dated as of 3u2612, by and between Tuesday
Morning Corporation and the Executive Office naimeréin (filed herewith

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refegdo Exhibit 21.1 to the Compar
Form 1(-K as filed with the Commission on March 9, 20

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer of titmmpany Pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer of ti@mpany Pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of ti@mpany Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theadat-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of tli@mpany Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theadat-Oxley Act of 200z

XBRL Instance Document*

XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Documen
XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Documer

*%

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage

These exhibits are furnished herewith. In accordamith Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these exhibits not deemed to
be filed or part of a registration statement orspextus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of tleeir8es Act of 1933, ¢
amended, are not deemed to be filed for purpos&gdion 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended, and
otherwise are not subject to liability under thesestions
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Exhibit 10.26
RETENTION BONUS AGREEMENT

This Retention Bonus Agreement is datededfettive June 5, 2012, and is between TuesdaynMgrCorporation, a Delaware
corporation (the "Company") and ("Executive").

Executive is currently an employee of tlwrpany. The Company values Executive's contribattorthe Company during the period of
its management transition and believes ExecutiVlecamtinue to contribute to the success of the @any during this period. The Company
wants to assure Executive's continuing contribugioning this period by providing an incentive botoigExecutive on the terms of this
Agreement, and Executive wishes to accept thisiitinee bonus on those terms.

Therefore, Executive and the Company agsefellows:
1. Retention Bonus.

a. The Company will pay Executive @&néibn bonus in the aggregate amount of $ , 20% of which is payable on August 31,
2012, and the remaining 80% of which is payablé&ogust 30, 2013, if Executive remains employedh®y€ompany on the applicable
payment date.

b. If Executive's employment with therfipany is terminated without Cause before Augus812, then the Company will
nevertheless pay Executive 20% of the retentiorub@mount on August 31, 2012. If Executive's empiegt with the Company is
terminated for any other reason before August 8122then the Company will not pay Executive anypamnt of the retention bonus.

c. If Executive's employment with therpany is terminated without Cause before AuguseBQ3, then the Company will
nevertheless pay Executive 80% of the retentiorub@mount on August 30, 2013. If Executive's emplegt with the Company is
terminated for any other reason after August 31220ut before August 30, 2013, then the Compatiynet pay Executive 80% of the
retention bonus amount on August 30, 2013.

2. Definition of Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, "cause" meanthé commission of a felony, a crime involvingralo
turpitude or any other act or omission involvindlful dishonesty, disloyalty or fraud with respecotthe Company or any of its subsidiaries,
(b) conduct tending to bring the Company or anig$ubsidiaries into substantial public disgracdisrepute, (c) substantial and repeated
failure, after reasonable notice and opportunitguce, to perform duties consistent with the officgoosition of Executive, (d) gross
negligence or willful misconduct with respect te tBompany or any of its subsidiaries or (e) anyeni@tbreach of (i) Executive's duties of
confidentiality with respect to information abobetCompany and its subsidiaries, (ii) the Compapglicies applicable to Executive, (iii) a
other written agreement between Executive and tiragany or (iv) this Agreement.

3. Executive's Obligations. Executive will devote Executive's full busingisse and attention (except for permitted vacaperiods
and reasonable periods of illness or other incapktti the business and affairs of the Companyitnsubsidiaries.

4. No Right to Employment. Nothing contained in this Agreement will be stned as an employment agreement or as obligttang
Company to continue to employ the Executive attang.

5. Notices. Any notice to be given in connection with thigreement will be in writing and will be either genally delivered, or
mailed by first class mail, return receipt requéste the recipient at the applicable address atdit beside the signatures to this Agreement.

6. Complete Agreement. This Agreement embodies the complete agreearehtinderstanding between Executive and the Company
regarding the retention bonus and supersedes aedpts any prior understandings, agreements ceseptations by or between Executive
and the Company, written or oral.

7. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two countéspaach of which is deemed to be an originaltzott of which
taken together constitute one agreement.




8. Choice of Law. This Agreement will be governed by and congtrimeaccordance with Texas law.

9. Amendment and Waiver. This Agreement may be amended or waived ongywriting signed by the Company and Executive. No
course of conduct or failure or delay in enforcihig Agreement will affect the validity, bindingfe€t or enforceability of this Agreement.

TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION

By: Address for Notice:

Name: Tuesday Morning Corporation

Title: 6250 LBJ Freeway

Date of signature: June , 2C Dallas, Texas 7524

Date of effectiveness: June 5, 2( Attention: Chairman of the Board of Directc
EXECUTIVE

Address for Notice:

Name:

Date of signature: June , 2012

Date of effectiveness: June 5, 2012
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe Registration Statements (Forms S-8 Nd3-13%035, 333-79441, 333-90315, 333-
117880 and 333-145811 and Form S-3 Nos. 333-84888,108275 and 333-147103) of Tuesday Morning Catpan and in the related
Prospectuses of our reports dated August 30, 202 respect to the consolidated financial stateimehTuesday Morning Corporation, and
the effectiveness of internal control over finahcggporting of Tuesday Morning Corporation, incldda this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Fort Worth, Texas
August 30, 2012
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Michael Marchetti, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-Kraésday Morning Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantaalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting tliaturred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regiss fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimnernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauainmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 30, 2012 By: /s/ MICHAEL MARCHETTI

Michael Marchetti
Interim Chief Executive Officer, President
Chief Operating Office




QuickLinks
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Stephanie Bowman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-Kraésday Morning Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantaalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting tliaturred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regiss fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimnernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauainmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 30, 2012 By: /s/ STEPHANIE BOWMAN

Stephanie Bowman
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 81350

I, Michael Marchetti, the Chief Executive Officeff tuesday Morning Corporation, hereby certify that:

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tuesday Mornirg@ration for the fiscal year ended June 30, ZQllg complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of theusities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the above-mentiongubrefairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and
results of operations of Tuesday Morning Corporatio

Date: August 30, 2012 By: /s/ MICHAEL MARCHETTI

Michael Marchetti
Interim Chief Executive Officer, President
Chief Operating Office
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF
TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 81350

I, Stephanie Bowman, the Chief Financial OfficeTaksday Morning Corporation, hereby certify that:

1. The Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tuesday Mornirg@ration for the fiscal year ended June 30, ZQllg complies with
the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) ofSbeurities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the above-mentiongubrefairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and
results of operations of Tuesday Morning Corporatio

Date: August 30, 2012 By: /s/ STEPHANIE BOWMAN

Stephanie Bowman
Chief Financial Officel




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF TUEDAY MORNING CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 81k



